iSe rveum

Dear Members,

Thee Board of Directors of your Company, with immense pleasure, presents the 08" Annual
Report on the business and operations of the Company together with Audited Balance Sheet,
Profit and Loss Accounmt, Cash Flow Statement, Schedules amd Notes to Accounts for the
financial year ended March 21, 2024,

1. Financial Performance of the Company
Einancial Results
The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024 had beesn
prepared in accordance with Indian Accountimg Standards {Ind AS). The financial

performance of your Company for Financial Year(s) 2023-24 and 2022-23 are as under:
{Armount in ¥ lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended | For year ended
¥st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Rewenus from ocperatiors 15 053,25 8. 068.52
CHfar Incoms 344 37 BO0.39
Total Incorme 15,397 62 886891
Taotal Expenditure 16,834 .88 11.035.67
Profdfloss belore, deprecialion and amarlization
expense, finance costs and Tax expense (720.66) {1,815.37}
Less: Depreciation and Amortization Expenses (328 08) {16585}
Prafit Nloss before Finance Costs, Exceplional
iterrs and Tax Expense (1,046.72) (1,981.21}
Less: Finance Cost (350 54 {18554}
Profil bafore Tax (1,437 .26) {2, 166. 75}
Less: Provision for Tax
Current Tax - -
Defemad Tax (z3ast)! Eahility 105 .54 _(48.42}
ted Profil after Tax (1,331.73) {2,215.18}
EPS (Basic) & (Diluted) (572.10) (950,99}
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Performance

During the Financial Year, your company recorded a Tofal Tncome of fs. 15,3097.62 Lacs from
Rs, B868.91 Lacs in previous year, a rise of 73,61 % as compared to the previous year, The
Loss before Tax stood at Rs. 1,437.26 Lacs from Rs 2,166,768 Lacs in previous vear, a
decrease of 33.67 % as compared to the previous vear and Loss afber Tax stood at Re.
1,331,773 Lacs from RBs. 221518 Lacs in previols year, a decrease of 3988 % &5 oompared
to the previous year.

2, State of Companies Affairs

The Company i focused on its vision and committed to fulfilling its mission through ensuring
consistent delivery of quality products, unsurpassed service and premium value to its esteemed
customers. IE also aims to work diligently a5 a team with high standards of integrity, as well as
emerge a5 a winner in the marketplace in all aspects of its busimess.

Further, Your Company schieved rapid growth across ks payments and financial services
businesses during the Finandal Year 2023-24 which can be witnessed from the Revenue [rom
operations that has been increased by 86.57 % i.e., from Rs. B068.52 Lacs to Rs. 15,053.25
Lacs and we are excited by the continued long-term pobential for revenue growth, profitability
and stability,

Pursuant to the definitive agreements entered into by the Company with Nivogin Fintech
Limited, it has become a subsidiary of Nivogin Fintach Limited as per applicab®e provisions of
Companies Act, 2003 woef, December 18, 20230 and Nivogin Fintech Limited holds S1.00%
equity share capital and voling rights in the Company.

4, Changes in the capital structure

Thie paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on date is Rs. 2,32,090 only (Rupees Two
lakh thirby=-two thousand Ninsty cnly) and the preference Share Capital of the Company as an
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date is Rs. Rs, 3,34,440 only (Rupees Three Lakh Thirty-Fowr Thousand Four Hundred Forty
Only}.

Cruring the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differential woting rights
nor granted stock options nor sweat eguity.

5. Dividend

Mo dividend has been recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company during the year

urder review.

6. Board Meetings

The Mestings of the Board of Directors are pre-schaduled and intimated be all the Directars in
advance, Inorder to enable them to plan thelr schedule. However, In case of special and urgent
bisiness needs, approval is taken either by comiening Meetings at a shorter natice with consent
of all the Directors of by passing a Resolution through Circulation.

There were & (Six) Meetings of the Board of Director beld during the Financial Year 2023-24
(iog., May 8 2023, Aug 9 2023, Movember 08 2023, December 11 2023, January 12 2024, and
February 8, 2024,

The maximum gap bebween any bwo consecustive Board Meetings did not exceed 120 davs (One
Hundred Twenty days) i.e., was within the period prescribed wunder the Cormpanies Act, 2013,

7. Directors and Key Managerial Parsonnel

The Board of the Company Is comprised of eminent persons with proven competence and
Integrity. Besides the experlence, strong finendal acumen, strabegic astubeness, and leadership
qualities, they have a significant degree of commitment towards the Company and devobe
adequate time to the mestings and preparation.

Directors

As on March 31, 2024, the Company's Board consisted of the 6 Directors and as on the date
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of the Repaort, the Board comgrises 2 Executive Director, 3 Non-Executive & Non-Independent
and 1 Independent Director. The details are as folows;

= Mr. Amit Vijay Rajpal - Non-Executive Chalrman
e Mr. Debiprasad Sarangi — Executive DEecor

[ Mr. Tashwinder Harjap Singh = Non-Executive Directar
| = Ms, Subhash Sriram — Independent Director

- Mr. Amit Tyagi - Executive Director

b Mr. Abhighek Thakkar — Director

Durireg the vear 2023-24, Mr. Abhishek Thakkar, who was appointed as Additional Director
pursisant to Section 161 of Companies Act 2013 under the Category of Non-Exeoutive and Mon-
Independent Director of the Company on 149 February 2023, was reappointed as the Director
of the Company in the 7 Annual General Mesting held on 07" September, 2023,

Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms, Sweta Mohanty has been appointed
as the Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 08™ February, 2024.

Cessation of directors during the Financial Year 2023-24

During the year under review, thers has been no resignation from the position of the office of
the directorship of the Company during the Financial Year 2023-24,

8. Declaration by Ingdependent Direct

Ms, Subhasei Srram is the Independent Director on the Board. Ms, Subhasri Sriram have
submitted the declaration of Independence as required under Section 14907 of the Companies
Act, 2013 confirming that they meet the criteria of independence &5 laid down under Section
19 6] of the Companies Act, 2013 and that the Independent Directors have complied with the
Code of Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule TV ko the Act. Such declarations were
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taken on record by the Board on 087 May, 2023, being s first meeting during the financial
vear 2023-24. The Independent Direckors of the Company have confirmed that they have
registered their names in the data bank of Indepandent Direcbors maintained with the Indian
Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule & of the
Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Derectors) Rules, 2014, The Independant Directors
of the Company possess the requisite experience and hence shall not be requred to pass the
ofine proficency self-assessment best as per the proviso b Rule 6(4) of the aloresaid Rule.

9. Di irim

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Debiprasad Sarangi (DTN 07601542)
Executive Director of the Company, retires at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, seeks re-
appointment, & resclution seeking the re-appointment of Mr. Debiprasad Sarangl (DIN
DFE01542) forms part of the Notice convening the ensuing Annual General Mesting scheduled
to be held on 05" August, 2024,

The profile and parbiculars of experience, attribubes and skills of Mr. Debiprasad Sarangi
together with his other directorships and committes memberships have e disclossd in the
anneoure to the Notice of the 8" Annual General Meeting of the Company,

10. Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (&), the draft annual return of the Company which has been
preparad and will be filed with the Registrar of Companies in the prescribed form as per Section
9203} of the Act, for the Financial Year ended on 31* March 2024 is hosted on the websile of
the Compamy, and can be acoessed at hitps.iserven m'corporale-governones’ « In terms of
Rules 11 and 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual
Return shall be filed with the Registrar of Companies within prescribed timelines,

11. Extract of Annual Return

The requirement for providing the Extract of fnmesal Retwrn in Form Mo, MGT-9 has been
dispensed with vide creular of Ministry of Corporabe Affairs dated March 5, 2021,
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During the year under review, the Company has not provided any guarantees covered under
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,

With reference to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, all contracts and
arrangements with related parties under Section 1BB( 1) of the Act, entered by the Company
during the financial year, were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis.
Curing the year, the Company had not entered into any contract or arrangement with related
parties which couk] be considered as 'materal’ (Le., ransactions which were required to be
placed before the members of the Company) according ko the policy of the Company on
materiality of Related Party Trarsactons. None aof the Directors had any pecuniary relationships
or bransactions vis-3-vis the Company other than sitting fees, commission, and reimbursement
of expenses imcurred by them for the purpese of attending meetings of the Board/
Committes(s) of the Company, Since all the Related Party Trarsactions enfered into by the
Campary were in the ordinary course of business and were on an arm’s length basis, hence
Form ADC-2 ks not appcable to the Company. The details of the transactions with related
parties durimg Financial Year 2023-24 are provided in the accompanying financial statements,

14, Public Deposits

In terms of the provisions of Sections 73 of the Act read with the relevant Rules of the Act, the
Campany had no opening or desing balances and also has not accepted any deposits during
the year under review and as such, no amount of principal or interest was outstanding as on
March 31, 2024.

15. Transferred to any Reserves

During the vear under review, In view of the loss of the Company, the Board of Director
proposed not to carry any amount bo any reserves, Hence, disclosure under Section 1343)()
of the Companies &ct, 2013 is not required.
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16. Maintenance of Cost Records

Maintenance of cost-records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions
of Secticn 148 (1) of the Companbes Act, 2013 are not applicable for the business activities
carried out by the Company,

17. Human Resource Management

The Compary recognizes human resowrce o be He most valuable asset of the Company.
People development confinues to be a key focus area at iServell, The Company confinues to
pay a fooused attention on the development of human relations within the organization. The
Company believes in bullding & culture of innovation and creativity where our employees ane
inspired to achieve excellence in their area of functioning.

The Company |5 ensuring the best place to work bo attract and retaln good employess in the
Comparty.

The Company continued to strive lowards atfracting, rebalning, training, muBtiskilling
employees, With the increase in workforce due to exparsion in business, envisaging the
requirement of adeguate on the job training across the various kevels of employees.

1B. Risk Management

A well-defined risk managemsnt mechanism cowvering the risk - management and trend
analysis, risk exposure, pofential impact and risk miigation process is in place, The objective
of the mechanism & bo minimize the impact of risks identified and taking advance actions to
mitigate it though the various risks associated with the business cannot be eliminated
completely, all efforts are made to minimize the impact of such risks on the aperations of the

Compary.

19. Sexual Harassment Policy

The Company has Zero Tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace, The Company
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has adooted & Policy on Prevention, Prohibition amd Redressal of sexual harassment at
workplace im line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
{ Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules there under for prevention and
redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at work place,

All employees (permanent, temporary, contractuad and traimees) are covered under thes policy,
All employvees are treated with dignity with a view to maintain an environment free of sexual
harassment whethar physical, warbal or psychological. Moreower, the group encourages women
emplovees by creaking safe and proper working condiions to provide a sense of conducive
work environment |e,, free from any form of discrimination,

Internal Complaints Committees ("ICC™) have been sel up bo redress complainks of sexual
harassment and the Company has complied with the provisions relating o the constitution of
ICC under the Act. Half of the tokal members of the TCC are women. The axternal membsers
with requisite experience in handing such matters are also part of the T0C. The I0C is presided
over by a senior woman employvee in each case. Inguines are conducted and recommendations
are made by the 1CC at the work place,

Curing the vear under review, the Intermal Complaints Committee has not received amy
complaint pertaining to sexual harassment,

20. Corporate Social Responsibility

In terms of the Sedion 135 of Companies Act, 2013, the Company & not falling under the
criteria of having net worth of nupees five hundred crore or more, or furnowver of rupees ong
thousand crore ar more or a net profit of rupees five crore or mare during the immediately
preceding financlal vears, Accordingly, the Company 5 not required o spend amount in the
SR acthvities during the finandal vear,

Further the details about the policy developed and implemsnted by the company on corporake
social responsibility initiatives taken are not applicable to the Company.
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21. Audit Committee

Presently, the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules & of the
Campanies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2004 are mot applicable to the
Campany.

23,

Being in service secior, the particulars redating to conservation of energy, techmology
absorption as required to be disdosed under the Act are nof appicable to the Company. The
Compamny’s operations are nob energy Intensive, Howewer, the Company has implemented
warious energy conservalion measures, such as adopting good practices in all major offices for

energy conservation like the use of LED lights, ban on one-time wse plastic, energy.

Duestails of earnings accrued and expendibere inourred in foreign ourrency for the year ending
on 31st March 2024 are as given balow:

{In Rupees)
Particulars Armount
Faoresgn Exchange Eamings 59,196
Foresgn Exchange Outgo 62,786,393

There were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators [ Courts during the Financial
Year under review which would Impact the going concern status of the Company and its fufure

operations.

In t2rms of Section 131 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Financial Statements and Board's
Report are m compfiance with the provisions of Section 129 or Section 134 of the Companiss

iServell Technology Private Limited

Plai Na, E-12, SRE Tower, 11th Floor Infocity Aren Chandaka | E Bhobanewar Khordha OR 751024

Tel: S3FHORRC0000 Woeh: woww aservean | Email: |||.1"|:'r:|:.|'i-"£='-n'|:|| in
ClIN: UF2nRz016PFTC 025851



iserveU®

Act, 2013 and that no revision has been made during any of the three preceding financial
YEars,

In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the Members
and cthers entitled thereto, excluding the information on emplovess’ particulars which s
available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during
business hours on working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General
Meeking. If any Member is interested in oblaining a copy thersof, such Member may write to
the Company Secretary in this regard.

The Company has documented its internal financial controls considering the essential
components of varous critical processes, both physical and operational, This includes its
design, implementation and maintenance along with periodic internal review of operational
effectiveness and sustenance, and whether these are commensurabe with the nabure of s
bisiness and the size and complexity of its operations. This ensures orderly and efficlent
conduct of its busimess, including adherence to the Company's polides, safeguarding of its
assets, prevention of errors, accuracy and completeness of the accownting records, the mely
preparation of reliable financial information and prevention and detection of frauds and emrors,
Internal financial controfs with reference to the financial siatements were adequate and
operating effectively.

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the report, there have been no maberial changes and
commitiments, which can affect the Mnancal position of the Company between the end of the
financial year and the date of report.

28, Changes in nature of Business
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The Board of Directors informs the member that during the financlal year there has been ne
material changes, except as disclosed elsewhere in the report:

* In the nature of Company’s business,
* Generally in the dasses of business in which the Company has intersst.

Pursuant to the requirement clause (¢} of sub-section {3) of Saction 134 of the Companies Act,
2013, vour Directors confirm that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accownts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper expianation relating to material departures;

B} The directors had sefected such accounting policies and appiied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a frue
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financal year and
of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

cl The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adeguate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) The directors had laid down proper internal financal controls to be followed by the
company and that such internal financial controls are adegualte and are operating
effectively; and

F} The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
alt applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

30. Remuneration Policy

Mone of the employvess including managerial personnel draws in excess of the limits prescribed
under sectlon 197 (12) of the Companbes Ack, 2013 resd with nades 5(2) and 5(3) of the
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companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Remuresration) Rules, 2014 which
needs to be disdosed in the Diredtor's Report.

31. Statutory Auditor

Mis. Rawal & Associabes, Chartered Accountanls, Firm Registration Mo 134109W, had been
appointed as the Statutory Auditors for a period of five (5) years at the Annual General Mesting
of the Company hebd on July 27, 2022 §ill the conclusion of the 11" Annual General Mesting of
the Company to be held In FY2026-27. In terms of the first proviso te Section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of the Auditors needs to be placed for ratification at
every subsequent Annual General Meeting since their first appointment. However, pursuant to
the notificabion dated 07th May, 2018 of the Companies {Amendment) Act, 2017, the said
appointment is not required to be ratified every year 5o long as the Auditors are eligible &
qualified to be appoinked. In this regard, the Company has received & communécation from the
Statutory Auditors to the effect that their appointment |s in accordance with the provisions of
Section 141 of the Compandes Act, 2003, and hence thelr appaintment ks not required o be
ratified.

32. Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to regulation 244 of SEBI {LODR), 2015 every listed entity and its maberial unlisted
subsidiaries incorporated in Indsa shall undertake secretarial audit and shall annex with its
anrual report, a secretarial audit report, given by a company secretary in practice, in swch form
as may be prescribed with effect from the year ended March 31, 2019, Since Iserseu
Technology Private Limited is the material subsidiary of Mivogin Fintech Limited the said
regulabions was applicable for the FY 2023-24,

The Board at itz meeting beld on February 11, 2023 had appoinked M/s Saroj Ray and
Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, holding Peer Review Certificate Mo, 9762020, to
undertake the Secretanal Audit for the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2024,

The Secrefaclal Audit Report in form MRE-3 for the financlal vear ended March 31, 2024 |s
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anrexed as "Annexure-A" to this Director's Repot.

33, Internal Auditor

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rubes, 2004 and other applicable provisian of the Companses Act 2013, Mfs DY B
Associales, Chartered Accountant, Mumbai were appointed as the Intermal Aoditors of the
Company for the FY 2023-24 at a Board Meeting held on January 12, 2024, During Bhe year
under review, the internal auditor of the Company, M/s DY & Associates, Chartered Accountant,
Mumbal conducted periodic Internal awdits of the Company, The detalled Internal Auditor
observations are noted and disowssed and also takes mote of the actions taken on the
observations of the Internal Auditor and recommendations made by them. Your directors are
confident that there are adegquate imbemal control systems and procedures which are being
foliowwed and complied with.

34, Auditor's Report
The Statutory Auditors have expressed thelir Emphasis of Matter (EOM) on the Standafane

financal staterments of the Company on the below matters:
Emphasis of Malter Fara

(U Raference is dravn B0 Nate Mo, 45, in respact of GST, the company & e process of
reconciliation of balances per Books With GET portdl, consaguential impact, Famy on the
Firtatcial Slalements cannol be guaniifed,

O apinion is nol modified in the aforesand matters.
Managemeant Repdy fo Augitor Emphasic on Matter

Regarding the emphasis o matter fo Note No. 95 in respect of G5T, we wand fo assure all that
W are activaly addnassing the malfar fighlighted in Mofe Mo, 45 concerming GST compliance.
W acknowledge that the technical glitches in the GST porlal are causing discrepancies in ihe
talfed amounts and we are working on the same with GET Authoribies fo resolve Bhese Ssues,
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Further, Adeguate Internal Condrol Sistems bave been Implemented avd are in place to
manage and mainlain accurale and complant GST records, We are committed fo resolving
thesa fochnical isswes promptly and ensunng that oo GST flings ane accurale and up-fo-daha

35. Reporting of fraud by Statutory Auditor

The Statubory Auditors have nob reported any instance of fraud under Section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013,

36. Corporate Governance

Your Compamy strives to attain high standards of corporate governance while interacting with
all the stakehalders, The increasing diversity of the investing community and the integrated
nature of global capital markets render corporate govermance a vital issue for investors. The
Company befieves that timely disclosures, transparent accounting policies and a strong
inclependent Bosrd go a long way in malntaming good corporale governanoe, presenang
sharehodders trust and maximizing leng term corporabe value. In pursult of corporate goals,
the Company accords high importance to transparency, accountability and inbegrity in its
dealings,

The Company is in compliance with all applicable Secretarial Standards as notified from bme
to time isseed by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board and
General Mesting,

Meither any application nor any proceeding was made o wias pendimg under the Insoleency
and Bankrupbcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2015) duning the financial year.
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As Company has not done any one-time sefflemeant dusing the year under review hence no
disclosure s required

40. Appreciation

Your directors take this cpportunity to express thelr grateful appreciation for the continued
sppport and cooperation recedved from our esteemed customers, vendors, dealers, [rvestors,
business associates and bankers during the year, The directors are thankful to the company's
sharshodders, Central and Stabe Gowernment authorities, Fegulabtory Authorities for their
consistent support to the company. Your company has been able to operate efficiently becauss
of the culture of professionalism, Creativity, Integrity and confinuous improvemsant in all
fumctions and areas as well a5 efficient utllization of the company’s recourses for sustamable B
Prafitable Growth.

Inspired by this vision, driven by values and powered by mternal vitality, your directors and
employess look forward to the future with confidence and stand committed to creating an even
brighter fubure for all stake holders,

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Iserveu Technology Private Limited

Date: May 10, 2024
Place; Bhubaneshwar

Mr. Debiprasad Satshi
Director
DIN:08317195 DIN: 07601542
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* SAROJ RAY & ASSOCIATES

CO0MPd MY EECRETYT L NIES

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 204[{1) of the Companies Act, 2012 and Rule 9 of the Companies
[Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Ta

The Members,

iserveu Technology Private Limiged

Plat No, E-12, SRB Tower, 11th Flaor Infocity Area,
Chandaka, | E Bhubaneswar, Khordha-T51024.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence o good corporale practices by Iserveu Technology Private Limited
ihereinafter called ‘the Company’) for the financial year ended 31" March, 2024. Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner thal provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporale conductistatutory compliances and éxpressing our opinion thereon,

Based on cur verfication of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and refurns
filed and other records maintained by the Company end also the infermation provided by the
Company, its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secratarial Audit,
we hereby report that in our opinien, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financigl year ended on 317 March, 2024, complied with the siafutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the CTompany has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the exient, in the manner and subject 1o the reporling made

hereinafier

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by lserveu Technelogy Private Limited for the financial year ended on
31¥ March, 2024, according to the provisions of;

(] The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), and the Bules made thereender;

fii) The Securifies Confracts {Regulation) Act, 1855 ('SCRA') and the Rules made there
under,{Mot applicable during the Audit Period)

(i} The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thera under;

{iw}  Foreign Exchangs Managemeni Act, 1995 and the rules and regulations made thare
undar fo tha extent of Fareign Dwecl Investmant, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings;

i) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1882('SEBI Act’):-

a.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguiremeniz) Regulations, 2015; (Not applicable during the Audit Period)

b. The 3ecurities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 20711; (Mot applicable during the Audit Period)

Page 1 of 4
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[+ The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; (Not applicable during the Audit Period)

d The Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Reguiramants) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable during the Audit Period)

a. The Sacurities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits
and Sweat Eguity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable during the Audit
Period)

f.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable during the Audit
Period)

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Trangfer Agenis) Regulationg, 1993; (Not applicable during the Audit Period)

h, The Securifies and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations. 2021; (Not applicable during the Audit Period)

i The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018; [{Mot applicable during the Audit Period)

(viy  Apari from the other siafutory laws applicable io the day (o day business of the
Company, following mdustry specific lews which are also applicable fo the
Company’;

1. Tha Infarmation Technalogy Act, 2000,

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards
[25-1 & 55-2) Issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

Dunng the pencd under review, as per the explanations and clarficabions gven 1o us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Reguiations, Guidelines,
Slandards, elc. as mentioned above.

We further repori that;

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constifuted with proper balance of Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors. There were no changes in the composition of the
Board of Dwectors during the perod under reviaw.

Adeguate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
cefailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance for meetings other than
those held at shorer notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeling.

We further report that there are edequate systems and processes in the company

commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Page 2 of 4
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We further report that;

During the perod under review, the company has no specific events or aclions which have a

major bearing on the Company's Affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards, atc,

For Saroj Ray & Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: Bhubaneswar

cs Uttam Bard), ACS
Date: 10" May 2024

Farin
ki Mo, BTE53, CP Mo. 28000
PR MNo. 53772023
UDIN: ADGTE53F000350540

{Ttis report is to be read with our lefter of even date which [z annexed as Annexure A and
fovrns an infegral part of this repart)

Page 3 of 4
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To

The Members

lserveu Technology Private Limited

Flot Mo, E-12, SEB Tower, 11th Floor Infocity Area,
Chandaka, | E Bhubaneswar, Khordha-T531024

Cur report of even date is o be read along with this lefter,

1, Maintenance of secretaral records is the responsibifity of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretanal records
based on our audit.

2 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance aboul the comeciness of the contents of the Secretaral
records. The verifications were done on test basis 1o ensure that comrect facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We belleve that the processes and praclices, followed
by the Company provide a reascnable basis for our opinion.

3. We have nol verified the comreciness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the company.

a4, Wherever required, we have oblained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events elc.

a2 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and cother applicable laws, niles,
regulations, standards is the responslbility of the management. Our examination was
limited to the verfication of procedures on test basis

B. The Zecretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effecliveness with which the managemeni has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Saroj Ray & Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: Bhubanaswar ﬁSM. ACE

Date: 10" May 2024 Partner
M Mo, 67853, CF No, 26080
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Dircctors of the Iserven Technology Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Starements

Urplndomn

I We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Iserven Techmology
Private Limited {“the Company™), which comptise the Balance Sheet as at 317 March, 2024,
and the Stalemant of Profit and [oss and Statemant of Cash Flows for the year then ended. and
notes to the speeial purpess financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and cther explanatony formetion,

2 [n pur opinion and Lo the best of our information and according to the explanarions
given to us, the aloresaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act. 2013 (*the Act™) in the manner s0 required and give a true and fair view in confonmity
with the adcounting principles generally accepted in India, ofthe sitate of affairs of the Compasny
as at March 31, 2024, and its Josz and its cagh flows for the vear ended on that date,

Rasis for opinien

3 We conducted our audit in 2ccordance with the Standards on Auditing {54s) specilied
under section 143(10% of the Acl. Our responsibilities under those Standards are fuither
described in the Awditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Spectal Purpese Financial
Statements section of oir report, We are independent of the Company in aecordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indin (“TCAT™) together with
the ethical requirerventz that are refevant to our audit of the special purpose financial stalements
under the provisions ol the Actamd the Rules thereunder, and we bave fulfilled our other cibical
responsibilitics in aceordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We belteve thia
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriste to provide a basis for our
apinion.

Emphasis of Matter Para

i) Referenice Tv drown io Note No. 45, in vespect of GST, the company iz the pracess of
recapciliation of balowces per books with GST' parial, comsequential impace, i any on the
Finanoial Siovemernty canmed be g (fied

{ Yer copimiian a8 et iodified in the aforesaid madters.
Diher Information
4 The Company™s Board of Directors is responsible for the other infermation. The other

mformation comprises the information included in the Directars repart, but does not include
the financinl seatements and our auditor’s report thereon.

1
804 & 807, Prospact Chambess, 4th Floor, 317, D. N. Road, Fort, Mumbsal - 400 001.
Tel ; 2282 H154, 2284 202 = Emall ; enkit® mwalassociaies.com, nelod @ rowalassociaies. com
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Onr opinion on (he linancial siatements does fiat cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conciuzion thereon.

I conneetion with our audit of the linancial stalements, aur responsihility is to read the other
information and. in daing 50, consider whether the other information is matepally inconsistent
with the financial staiements orour knowledge abtained in the audit or otherwise appears (o b
misterially missmed. If, based on (he work we have performed, we conclude tha there isa
aterial misstatement of this other information, we are required to repart that Fact.

Management's responsibility for the Special Purpose Financial Informa tiomn

5. The Company’s Beard af Direetors is responsible fur the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect 1o the preparation of thess special purpase linancial stalements
hat give a troe and fajr view of the financial position, financial performance and cash lows ol
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles penerally accepted in Indin,
including the aecounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibiiiny
alsi includes maintenunce of adequate accounting records in accordance with the pravisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and [or preventing and detecting frands
and other irreaularities; selection and application of appropriate of sccounting policies: making
judpments and estimates that are reasonabie and prdent: and design, implementation and
maintenance ol adequate intemal Minancial controls, thal were aperating cffectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the aceounting records, relevant o the preparation and
presentation of the special purpose financial statement thal give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror.

i In preparing the (inancial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for ussessing
the Company”s ability 1o continue a5 a goiny Concerm, disclosing, us applicable, matters related
bo poing concern ind wsing the poing concem basis of accounting unless (he Bourd of Dircctors
githet intends 1o liquidste the Company or 10 CEasC aperations, or has no realistic altemative
hut 1o do sp, Those Board of Directors are also respensible for oversecing the company’s
finanoial reporiing process.

Auditor’s responsibility for Special Purpose Finuncials Statementy

7. Qur objectives ang v obtan reqconable sssurance sbout whether the special purpost
financial statements as @ whole ave free from materigl misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. dnd 1o issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assuranee is 4 high
level of assurance, but it niot a guarantes that an andit conducted in aceordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement whea il exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the agaregate; they could reasomably be
expected (o influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these special
purpose financial statements.

g, As part of an audit in sccordance wilh SAS. we exercise professional judgment and
mialntain profiessional skepticiam throughout the audil. We also:
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(i) Tdentify and assess the risks of marerial misstiatement of the speuial purpose financial
statemenis, whicther due to fraud or error, design and perform sudi procedures
responsive (@ those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriaie Lo
provide 4 basis for owr ppinien. The risk of not deteciing & matenial misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher (hayi {or one resulting [rom error, as fraud may invalve
collusion. fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentationg, or the override of internal
eonirol.

tis} Olbtain an understanding of ntemal control relevant o the andil in order o design audit
priseedures thal urc appropriate in the cirsumstances, Under section 143(3)(1} of the Act,
we are ajse responsible for EXpressing our wpirtion oo whether the company hhas internal
finamcinl controls with reference fnancial statements in place and the operahng
effectiveness of suchcontrals,

{¢) Evaluaic the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of
aceouming esimales and related disclosures nade by management,

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
aceounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material unceriamty
exciste related to ¢vents of conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company 's
ahility io cantines a5 4 going CoNcerm. I we conclude thatl & material uncertointy exists.
we are requircd to driny aitention in our auditor's repork to the pelated disclosures in the
special purpose financial staternents or, il such disclosures aré inadequate, to modify
aur epinion. Cur conclusions are basad on the auditevidence abtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, fulure evenls or sonditione may cause the Company 10

cenge 10 continue a5 @ going comeetn.

() Fvaluate the overall presentation, stracture and content of the special purpose financial

sttemants, including the disclosures, and whether the special purpose financial
staternents represent the undarying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation,

Maleriality is the magnitude ol misstalements in the finaneial stalemenis that,
individually, or in agpregalc, makes it probable thas ihe economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable nser of the financial statemenis may be influenced. Wa
comsider quantitative matariality and qualitative factors in { i} planming the seape al our
audit work and in evaluasing the rusults of our work: and (i) 1o evaludic the effect of
any identified misstatements in the financial statcmenits.

9. We commuicate with thase charged with governance regarding, among other malters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies 1 imtcenal control that we identify during our audit.

1. Wealso provide these charped with povemance with a slatement thiat we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and t comrmunicale with them all
velationships and other matiers thet may reasonably be thought Lo bear an aur inde
and where applicable. related safeguards. Ay
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11, The provisions of Scetion 197 read with Schedule V to the Act sre applicable anly 10
public companies. Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable o
the Company.

12, As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(&) We have sought and abtained all the information and explanations which 1o the best of
our knowledge and heliel were necessary fir the purposes af our audil.

(h)  In our upinion, proper books of account as requited by law have been kept by the
Company $o far as it appears from our examination ol those books

(¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement #nd
Statement of Changes in Cquity dealt with by this Repori are in agreement with the books of
Elal 1G]

(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with thie Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act.

(2)  Onthe hasis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March.
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualificd as on 31
March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

() With respect 1o the adequacy of the internal linancisl controls with reference 1o financial
statertients of the Company and (he operating effectiveness of such contrals, refer 1o our
separate Report in Annexure *A

gl With respect 1o the ather matiers Lo be fncluded in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule | | of the Companies { Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opimon and to the
best alour infonmation and aceording Lo the explanations given i s

{iy The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
siateinent. {Refer Note Ne.33 1w 37)

(i1} The Company Jid not have any loog-term contraets including derivative contracts [or
which there were any maierial forssseable losses.

(ili} There were nie ameunts which were required @ be transferred to the [nvestor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year 317 Mareh, 2021,

13. Az required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report} Order, 2020("the Uhrder™) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act. we give in “Annexure B” a
stutement on the matiers specilied in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.
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As required by Section 143 (3} of the Act, we report thai:

a)

f}

2]

We have sought and obtned afl the information and explanations which to the best ol
aur knawledge and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

In our opinion, proper buoks of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so faras il appears from our examination of those books;

The Halznce Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Losy and the Steiement off Cuash Flow
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion. the aforesaid special purpose financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Aceounts) Rules. 2014,

Cin the basis of the written representations received from the divectors o5 on 315t March,
20XX taken on record by the Board of Dircctors, none of the direciors is disqualified
ason 31s March, 20XX from being appoinied &5 a director in terms of Section 164 (2)
of the Act;

We have sought and obtained all information with respect 10 the adequacy of the intermal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company and the
aperating effectiveness of such controls.

With respect 1o the other matiers to be included in the Auditor's chnrt in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies { Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 1o
the hest of vur information and sccording 1o the explanations given 1o us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litipstions on 18 Gnancial
position in its special purpose financial statements — Refer Note XX 1o the
speeial purpose linancial statements;

OR
The Compeny does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financinl position.

i The Company has made provision, as required ender the applicable law or
sceounting standards, for meterial forcsccable losses, o any, on long-lerm
cuniracts including derivative comracts — Reler Note 20X 1o the special purpose
financial sierements;

OR

The Company did not have any long-term contracls including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseenblo losses.

iii.  There has been no deliay in transferring amounts, required 1o be tmnsfumd e
the Tnvestor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. =

+ 43 2
(1I . I!
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As required by The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in our opinien, according 1o
information, cxplanatons given 1o s, ihe remuneration paid by the Company 1o it
directors is within the limits laid preseribad under Section 1§97 of the Act and ihe mules
thereunder,

For Rawat & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 134100W

Chanbifs,
T, i ¥ Enad |4 t
F ol

Partner Mria- 410 1.— _:_r /|
Membership No 416638 1‘15;,
LUIDEM: 244 16638BRONIMI 2

Jammn, 107 May, 2024
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Annexare A" (o the Independent Auditors® Heport
(Refirred fo in paragraph 12{7) under the irewiding ‘Repart s Dther Loga) qud Regultory Reguirements'
seretind af wur repoet of even datet

Report on the Internal Finaneial Controls under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Scetion 143 of
the Companles Act, 2813 (*the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over Bnancial reporfing of lserves Technology
Private Limited (*the Company’) as af 319 March, 2024 in congineticn with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company tor the yvear ended on that dite.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Finnncial Contiols

Ihe Company’s msnsgement is responsible for establishing and mainmining intemal finameal
controls based on the internal control over financial reparting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidanee Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chaitered
Accountants of India, These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adeguate internul linancial controls that wene operating effeetively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including sibersnce o company s policies, the safepuarding of its
asscrs, the prevention and detoction of frauds and ermors, the soeiuracy and completeness of the
sccounting records, and the timely preparation of relisbks financial information, as requircd undar
the At

Auditars” Responsibility

Qur responsibility is w express an opinion on the Compamy’s intemal financial controls over
linancial reporting based on our audil, We condicted anr audit in necondunce with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financis! Controls over Financial Reporting ( ‘the Guidance Mot} and
the Standards on Auditing deemed 1o be preseribed ander section 143010) of the A<, 1o the exten
applicable 1o an audit of internal financial controls, hoth applicable to-an audit of Intemal Financial
Controls and, hoth issued by the Institute of Chartored Avcountants ol Indie, Those Standards and
the Guidanes Note require that we comply with ethical reuirements mod plan aad perfort the audit
ter obinin reasonable assyrance about whether adequnte interial finencial controls over finoncial
repoeting was established and meintained aml it such cogtrols operited effectively in all material
TEEpaCs,

Our audit invel|ves perfoming procedures 1o obtain audit evidence ahou the adequacy of the
mtemil financial contols system over financial reparting and their operating effectivensss. Our
audit of internal financial controls over tinancial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal (inancial controls over financial reporiing, assessing the risk that a material weakness
waists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contrel based
on the assessed risk The procedures selecied depind on the auditor's judgpment. inchiding the
assessuenl of the rishs of material misstatement of the financial staretments. whether due ta fraud
ar errar.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient andappropriate to provide a basls
for cur auditopinion on the Company™s imtemal finaneizl conirols systent over financial reporting

404 & 407, Prospect Chamibers, 4th Floor, 317, D, N, Road, Fort Mumbsal - 400 H.»:Fl.
Tel | 2282 B154. 2284 3202 » Email : ankité rawatassociaies com, nakul 8Tawatassociates.com
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Fimancial Reporiing

A Company's intemnal financial contral over financial reporting is & process designed to provide
reasonahle assurance reparding the relishility of financial reporting and the prepararion of financial
statements for external purpeses i accordance with génerally accepled scoounting principles. A
campany's intemal financial control over financial reporting includes these policies and precedures
that {1} pertain to the maintenense of tecuwnls that in ressonable detail, securate v and Tairly reflace
the tansactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transsctions are recorded as neoessary o permit preparation of financiol statements in
acgordance with geremlly accepted sccounting principles, and that recéipty and expendinres of the
company re being made anly o accordance with autharizations of managemcnt and directors of
the company; and (1) provide reasonable assurance reganding prevention of timely detection of
wnanthorised aequisiion, nse, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
etfect on the fmancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reparting

Beceuse of the inherent limitations of intemal financial contrels over fmancial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of contrals, matenial misstatements
due to error or fraud may oceur and not be delected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
intemal fingneis] confrols over (inoncial reporting o foome periods are subjoct (o the risk that the
internal financisl contral over financial repofting may become inadequate becanse of changes
conditions, or that the degres of compliance with the policies or procederes may deferiorate.

Oipinion

I our opinion, the Company has, n all materdal respects, an adequute intersal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such inlernal financial eontrols over financial reporting were
ot operatng effectively and needs fo be strentgthen o5 81 31° March, 2024, bpsed on the internal
control over Mnanchl reporting criterin established by the Company considering the cssential
gompoments of internal control siated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrils
Over Financial Réporting ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

For RAWAT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Reg. no 134109W

NAKDL RAWAT
Partner

Membership no 416538
M bai, 10 May, 2024
UDIN — 24416638BKCNIM 1436
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Annexure ‘B to the Independent Anditors’ Repart
(Referred to in paragraph 11 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legul and Regulntory
Reguirements' of onr report of even date)

(i) {#) (A) The Compgny is maintaining proper records showing full particulars.
including quantitative details and situetion of Property, Plant & Equipment.

{B} The Company is maintaining proper records showing full perticulars of
Intangible Assets.

(h) According to the information and explanatons given 1w us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has s regular
proprarme of physical verification of its Property, plant and cquipment by which
all Property, plant and equipment are verified onee during the year. Tn our opinion,
this periadicity af physical verification is reasonable having regand o the gize of
the Company and the nature of its assets. No material diserepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(¢) According o the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by s, the Company docs not own any immovable property (other than
properties where the company is the feasee and the lease apreements ire duly
executed in favour of the lessee). Therefore, the provigions of Clause 3{i) (c) of
the Ceder are not applicable to the Company.

{d} According to the information and explanations given o 05 and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its
Property, plant and équipmeant {including Right-of-use asscts) or Intangible asscts
or bath during the vear

(¢} According 1o the information and cxplanations given t© us and the records
examined by us, there have not been any proceeding iniliated or are pending
against the company for holding any benami property umder the benami
transactions (Probibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rulés made thereunder,

(il {a) The inventory has been physically verilied by the managament during the year. In
pur opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and
coverdge as followed by management were appropriate, No discrepancies were
noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were
10% or more in the aggrepate for each class of inveniory.

(k) According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of odr
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanetioned
working capital limils in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on
the basis of security of current assets. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) (b
ol the Order ave not applicable 1o the Company,

—_— —_——— = —=
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(ifi}

{iv}

(%)

{vi)

{viia)

(b}

(wiii)

(i) (a)

According to the information and explanations given Lo us and on the basis of cur
examination of the records, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guaranitoe or security or pranted any loans of advances in the nalure of loans,
secured or unsccured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships of any other
parties during the year. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii) (), (&), (e}, (),
{¢) and {f) of the Order are not applicable 1o the Company

Aceording to the information and explanations given lo us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarapice or security as specified under Seetion 185 of the Companies Act. 2013
and the Company has not provided any gnomntes or seeurity o specified under

Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2073

The Company has not accepted any deposits or ameunts which are deemed 1o be
deposits [rom the publi¢. Accordimgly, clause 3{v) of the Order 15 not applhicable.

The Central Government of India has not speeified the maintenance of cost records
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the servicas of the
Company, Accondingly, elause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted’ acerued m the
hooks of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
services Tax (*GST7Y, Providenl fund, Employess’ State Insurance, Ineome-tnx.,
Duty of Customs, Cess and other matenal siatotary dues have generally been
repularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there bas been o slight
delay in few cases.

According to the information wnd explanations given to us. no undisputed amounts
payable in respect'ol” GST, Provident fund, Employess” State Insurnnce, Income-
g, Duty of Custom, Cess and other materinl statutory dues were in arrears a5 at 31
March 2024 fora pericd of more than six months from the day they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given 1o us, there are oo dues af
GST. Provident fund, Emplovees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service
b, Duty of Customs, Value added tax, Cess or other satutory dues s on 31 March
3024, which have not heen deposited on account nf any dispute,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of
aceount. in the tax sssessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during
thié year.

According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the bagis of our
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(]

(&)

()

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulied in the
repayttent of loans or horrowings or in payment of interest to any lender during the

YCar.

According (o the infurmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
svamination of the records of the Company, the Company bas not been declared a
wilfisl defaulter by any bank ot financial institution or government or govemment
anthorty

I e opinion, and aceording te the information and explanations given to us, the
term loans have been applied, on 2n overall basis, for the purpases for which they
were obiained.

According to the information and explanations fiven 10 us. amd the procedures
performed by us, and an an overal] examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that to funds raised on short-lerm hasis have been used for
long-tem purposes by the Compaay.

According to the information and explanations given o Us and on an overall
examination of the fnancial statements of the Company, we repod that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of ot
meet the ohligations of i1s subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under
the Companies Act 2013, Aceordingly, elause 3tixke) of the Owder is not
applicable

According to the information and explanations piven 10 us and procedures
performed by ug, we report that the Company has not taised loans during the year
o the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies
Act, M1 3. Accordingly, clause 3(1xKL) of the Orderis not applicable.

(%) {#) The Company has not taised any moncys b waty of initial public olfer or further

public effer (including debt insiruments) during the year and therefore. the
provisions of clause 3(x) {a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b} According to the information and explanations piven to us and on the basis of our

(i) {a)

sximination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debenturcs during the year. Accordingly, clause )by of the Oxder is not
applicable.

Thuring the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company.
carried sut in sccordance with the penerally accepted suditing practices in Indiz,
and according to the information and explanations given 1o 18, We have neither
come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company,
noticed or reportad during the year, nor have we haen informad of any such case by
the Management
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L)

(e}

(xii)

(aiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

Acearding to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-
seetion (12) of Section 143 of the Compantes Aet, 2013 has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT= as preseribed under Rule 13 of Companies {Aundit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Cenral Qoverniment.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no whistle
hower complainis received by the tompany during the year

Aceording to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not n
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3{xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on ouor
examination of the records of the Company, transaction with the related party 3= in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable anc details of
such transaction has been disclosed in the financinl statemenis as required by the
applicable Indian ecoounting standards.

Tn our opinion and based on our examination, the company is nol required Lo have
an internal audit system under section 138 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)
{a) and (b} of the Order iz not applicable.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and hased on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has nol entered into any
non-cash trarsactions with its directors or persons connected 1o its directors, and
hence, the provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable
to the Compaty,

{3vi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 43-1A of the Reserve

{b]

(el

Bank of India Act. 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){a} of the Order 5 not
applicable.

The Cempany has not conducted non-banking fimancial or housing finance
setivities during the vear, Accordingly, the reporting under Clause I(xvi) (h)ofl the
Oirder 13 not applicable 1o the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined m the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3 {xvi) (e} of
the Order is not applicable.

(d} According to the information and explanations provided o us during the course of

audit, the Group does not have any C1C. Accordingly, the requirements of clause
Sxwipd) 2re not applicable

Ihe Company has ircurred cash losses of [NR 168.3 lakhs in the financial vear and
200367 in the immediately preceding (inancial yoar,
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(xviii} There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the

[z

{xx}

(xxi}

provisions of elause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable w0 the Company.

Acenrding o the information and explapations given to us and on the basis of the
financial eatios [Also refer Note No 52 1o the Financlal Stulements), ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment ol financial liabilities,
ather information accompanying the [inancil statements, our knivwledpe of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examinaton of the
cvidence supporting the nssumptions, nothing has come 1o our attention, which
causes us 10 belicve that any material upeertainty cxasts &5 on the date of the audt
report that the Company is not eapablz of mecting its liabilites existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a perind of one year from the
halanee sheet date. Wi, however, state that this 1s nol an assurance as the future
viahility of the Campany. We further state that our reporting is based on Lhe facis
up to the date of the audit report and we neither pive any guarantce nor any
assurance that all linhilities falling due within a periad of one year from the balance
sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

'The provisions relating (o Corporats Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the
Act are not applicable 1o the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clapse 3(xx)
of the Order iz not applicable to the Company

The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicahle in respect of audit
of Standalone Finuneial Statcments, Accordingly, ne comment i1 Tespect of the said
clause has been included in this report.

For RAWAT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Acconntanis

Firm Reg. no 13410%W

(!

NAKUL RAWAT
Pariner

Membership no 416638
Jammau, 10'h May, 2024

UDIN - 24416638BKUNIM1436



Psvrven Teehmobigy Private Limited
itlanee Shees

s Al Slst Warel. 22a
{ BT dw Laanag

Al SBsF Lot
Puitawhis Nnile Wi, Marai, 2034 Maiit, 1624
i wulived} | yealiiedi
L ANSE %
Gt M=l urreni Al
{of oot Blni aml Egoipinenl 4 1 1113l
LT Bt o e Al 5 208018 1328 9%
L& apital Wk -m-frogrees 4 - (Ll
111 Inkangibile Assicts 4 4% ps L
e dmsrgib i Al audgr Deve kijancii 4 id45.04 kK
Jik Finnovial Sseds
R TR (TS Y
Cotlier Fimani e Asis lia 1717 [EIL
sl D permed Tas At (0el) 14 | Ikl 1124
Ihis. 50 1ML S
e L mrrent Axiets
1l linveiiories * bl e ] 1K
(310 manginl Ases
L ITvsaieiens 1 315707 T ARTTRd
ik sie feoeivahlies | 137979 T2%D |14
T v ] Usisde Baguivaienmts u 280751 mnrE?
Vil praes ind Al ey 1 a7 44 497
IRTTR R R b S VT [ 35 12 & 1 | . 751, T [T R
120 ]HS TE27.64
Tkl Asaets 12,932.35 9786
I FRTT S A1 LAAIRIL§TES:
sl ) Rapmly
s 3Gy Lol 1511l i 1 LAY,
AR e 15 ) 22U AN FHLR|
2.1 041 JA45.13
lp Ealidviods
$i0 Mot e 8 datpilipks
T TR H R 7 P T IR8 Hiu ) 2463 100 g
03 A1
S R ureeemt Liab#idies
Fivazeasi §sibalines
fat St maen Sarreawings LA AR AE LA )
U e 155l TRja) Wrdedli Shy 4
Py € mla 1l b Ltmlpllvincs LRy TE15 52 1547 45
Vi cher ©wrnan | E_.,nilll_\. i3 153270 4] Au
. LRk (AT _ ha43aH
Vsl Lotpbdligics |0, TT0. N [ Sl
Vol Bojaiain apnal L bslbibibies 12,952.38 i TE"'E'.:'E

H dereas ot aar ripn et o ceid il
Cord Bt & CAsamiiiies
§iaereei&d A cudisinii
Biyen Bard, S 134 D)W,

Feow sl arn Ischael o 1he Boasild el 1hrey

P
‘%".muuu.

ek ]Jﬂl’f‘““g‘ wﬂ’

Ihelviprusnd Sarnngi
Pariinee IMreciue [ERTES  BT |
"y "lill'l"«lli_“ “wais Sl Bl % @il Bu? R AT L i
i - M. -, Fug 1 i
UL S 24T R N 55 12k Blinhanrswa wew Debhi ‘\%::?q\ P
B [HY Sa, T2 ol et

SR,
brtias] Yayminls 0Ty



Iserven Technalegy Private Limited

Statemsent of Proft and Lioss
For the year ended 315t March, 2034

{dwmaun? [ Lacs
Yesr enilinl Frevinm year indid
1) b330 31-03-1923
Parfizitars Moie M. Aridived Al
Imsceamiz
. Fevenug from Operations (1] 1%,053.25 5,168,521
2, (ther Inoorme b1 _ dam __ Bo0.3%
1539752 B HG8. %]
Exzpenses
1, Cost ol Services 4] 11.508.27 7,388,314
4 Change i Invemorics of Steck-m-trade 1 i#7.11) (326.47)
5. Empioyec Bisedil Exponss L3 LOTE 16 141355
&, Finsace Cosl 14 190,54 1R%.54
7. Depreeiation Expenses 15 12606 165.85
3. iher Pxpozscs b6 11779 TR RS
Totsl Fapenses 1 B4 EE 1103567
Prafit { (Lost) Bafors Tax {1,437.26) {2,176
W, Tax Expenmes

{a] Currend . -

b} Deferred tax Expense ({Gains) {105.34) CEH
Total Tax Expinse {105.54) 4541
Profit! {Laixh rnrﬂ;lﬂr 11 331.72) (2, 21518)
{(her Comprehensive Incame
frams rhar will med he reclorsified o Prof® or Loy

Hemesssrements af Defined Benefil Plms 533 {84

Tax melating wr above 1.39 181

[ther Compreensive Income, Me of Tas .04 4.0

Total Comprehensinve Incame !I,Jﬂ.'i"l! {2,207 1€)
Earmings Per Share (EP5)

- Paid-up Bquity Share Capriial L3050 2310

- Face walne per share AE] 2 1.00

« Earnimgs per Equity Share I (572103 (95T 5

(Face value Bls | per share]

It vermar of our report of eren dale

For Rewst & Associates Fuor and oa beheall of the Board of Dareciors
Chartered Ascountsnis
Fii de‘: 110N q ?; /

:E{rg x“'ffa- T-):EJ tok e Lon ﬂ ﬂf‘ T
Makal Rawai Debiprasnd Sarangi .'qu Tyagi 1 !
Pariner Diimector MMrecior

Memberahip No: 416658 A DN BTaIS42 DN: 0BA I TI9S

LUDEN- M GASRBKCNIM 1436 ™ Hhobaseswar Mew Dl

Jammup, [0th 8 ay, 2024

Aumnue] Accounis 26713-24



Stademnent of Cash Flows for the yvear ended 31 s Murch, 2024

Iserven Technology Private Limited

A mosnt i Lot
-n0-2024 [TF TR
Andited Aweled
Cash flaw lrom opernling acfivitie
Profit{Loss) before tax e continuing pperatian {1.437.311) {3, 166.76}
Profit e lore tax lrom disconlisuieg opermians 3 T
Profid belers Bix (1435.28) (e H 17 % ]
Adjasirrent in meconcile profit e s o nd ceh fowe
Dqﬂp:l.ﬂh;ln." anorlzaticn on mﬂﬁm'm; opsmlions 26,06 [f5.ES
Dreresise ¢ (Inererse) in bl due Ly Ind Ax adusiments . (102}
Drecressss [ (Inerease] in prodil dug bo prior perind Adiestmenis - {TTA46]
Interest expens 30054 1E5.54
Intgrest {imcome) {2R1.35) {143, 7)
Dhpersting profit bebers working cnpital chisges {10303 12, 155.55)
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inerease’ (deprepss’ = rade payshies 3.ES 13454
Incrase | {decresss) im otber finascial Habibities 257451 (386.41)
Incress: | |decrease) im provisions 12054 1 v
Increase | {deerease) im niher el linhildies 1 93.31)
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Caah flows from investng achivilies
Prarchase of lxed assets, inchodng CWIT and caplal sdvances {5752} (h2.HE)
Purchase of inlengfbe assete under deviopment [13525) -
Sale of Fixed Assml - 562
Iniesest received PN e 156,19
Mt cash P fmmy (e i) inveting ativives o) T1.25 ey
Cash fews from financing activities
Procends frem long-form borrowanga {10 1049
Procesds from shorstermn homratsgs Ly AR | .
Repayrsent of short-iemm bormowings (1847 (TIRA1)
Interest paid {3411.54) L]
Wt cash Now fioes (used i) in firmancing sctivitie: i 48470 i 683,71}
Nt imcrease/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalests (A = B+ O __LesLe (56821}
Eiffect of excharge differences on cash & cash equivalisits
hield in Foreign cumency .
Cash and cash equivalents st the beginming of the year AT 276,68
Umst and cash opeivalenis o tlie erd of the yesr 240131 1356
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[serven Technslogy Private Limited

Components of cash ad cash eqelvelents .

Cazh in hissd

Chegues' drafts on hend

With hanks- i eurrant Booounl 240231 ::::3
Total cash and cash equivalents fnate T) __H‘t_jl et

Az per o P af EVEn oale
For Rawst & Associaes
Chariered Arcoundands
Firm Regd. No.: 134109%W

W

Dehiprasad Ssrangi Amit i

Nl Rawal

Partner MarecinT Direcior
plemberthip No: 416638 DN 76546 DI E31 TS
LT M= 244 DEE RO NIM 434 Bhubaneswur Mew Delhi

Jamminii, 1R May, 2024

Azpmal Actountd 202324
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Iserven Technulogy Frivite Limited

Accompanying notes to the financial statements for the yeor ended 317 March, 4

I, COMPORATE INFORMATICNN
ISers el ds o DIPP cemified Fin lech company pegistered umder e Start-ap Indi projensn of Cavesmimen
of I chined 37 Seprembser 2006, supparted I NS TERIE pledging fowarch making lidiz @ Tmacul
inelisme society. It has spent 7 yenes and more and has stceesslilly run =-i'-"i-1-'llljI techmlogy selufear in
purtnership with Banks, NRFC, Financial Institufim plivers med Comomie HBusiness Carnespondens

2 BASLES OF PREPARATION

A Compliance with hid-A%
I inameial statcients compby inallmaterial sspocts with ldian Accosnting Standarcs 1 Tid- A% ) notificd

umder Sectioit |33 of the Compamies Act 2003 {the Act 1| Companies { Indim Acconnting Standards | Rules.
201 5] and vaher nebevant provisions of the Act

11 Hiswrical cost conveation
M financiai sitements have been prepared on histernical cost basis. Nope of the asset or Lability &

pncasiarec ab Gaer vinlie hisis

 Funacrtionsl and presentation curreney
Me financial stmements are presented in Indian Rupees (20 which is the curmency of the prisiiry ecomamis
environment i which the company operates (the “functional currency ™) The varlues are rounded to the
mearcst lakhs, except when atherwise indicated.

IF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The cosnpuny presents its balance sheet in order of Tquidity. An analysis regarding reeovery o sertlement
within 12 months afier the reporting date {cornent) and mone than 12 months afber the reporfing date {non
carreinl | sooresenied in Note 317

Financiai ssets and finarcial labilies are generally reported gross in the bilange sheet They are only
offset and reported net when. in addition to having s unconditional legally enforceatle fighi o ofTset the
recopnised amounts withou being contingent on a future event. the parties also miend 1o setthe o & et

Pt dn sl of the Foflow g circumstames;

o The el costeses oF Fuisdniess
a e event ol detaull
o Ul ewent of vessbveney or hankraptey of e Usnpany andlon ity commier sifies

ool REFAT VERSUS NONCHRRENT CLASSIFICATION

| b § sl pdseiila nEsels and Bahilittes i the staremamt of e g Fabilines Baaed cé ot sai-

ST | 9 -.LI""'\-I Lesulnon

Vi et 3y ksl as cwiment when il s
= st i b vl e o el tee solil o consimoeed e sl -.l|1|.'1-||:|'|||; with

w |l oty bop e gai j uil trawdeng

@ Lonpered oo peileed seoodoa e v ot s afer the neponoeg, persad. o

& Ugpalovwr coslcousaenn snless restricied froen bease e o] oo e lsesa 0y g Balaling B a8

Snnsal Accounts 204504



Iserveu Technology Private Limited

(i8] ATl oiher assets arg classilied as non-gurrent.

fiii} A Hahility is classified as cusrent when:
» Tt iz expecied 1o be setiled in normal operating cycle
» ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading
e Tt is dus tebe xetilad within twelve monthe afer the reposting perind, or
«  There is ne unconditlonnl Aght (o defer the sestlement of the liahility for at keast twelve months

after the reporing period
{ivh All other liabifitics are classified as pon-cumen,

{v) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liahilities.

Based on the nature of service and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realizetion in cesh and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months
fior the purpose of curment and non-cument classiflcation of assets and liabilites.

F REVENUE RECOGNITTON
Reverse (othes than far these flems 1o which Ind-AS 109 Firancial Instruments are applicable) i measured
a1 Tair value of the corsiderntion received os receivable, Ind-AS | |5 Revenue from contracts with customers
oullines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers
and supersedes cusrent revenss recognition guidance found within Ind-AS.

Eﬂnmn:r recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model a8 2t out in
-AS-115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between (wo Or more
parties that create: enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every conmact that must
be mel.

Step 2 Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise ina contract
willly @ customer o transfer & good or service 1o the cusiomer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction peice: The transaction price is the amount of coasiderstion to which the
Company expests to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or SECVICES b 3 CUSTOMAET.
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third panies.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has
more than one performance obligation, the company aliocstes the transaction price 10 each performance
ohligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the company expects 1o be
entitied in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 4 Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

i Sale of devices : Revenue from contract with cusiomer is recognised point in time when
performance obligation is satisfied (when thee trade 18 executed),

i, Sale of services : Revenue from service is recognised when the control in services & wansferred as
per the terms of agreement with customer 1e. 05 ond when the services are reodered, These elude
commission which is charged per ransaction execalesd,

it Fecharpe commission: The compony fsciliaies rechorge of lk tinie, bill paywent: asd cams

ClmmisskEn e Lhe rq:s-lu.'ﬂ]'ﬂ.t services, Commiseion income is Fﬂ".’ﬂﬂi?‘#d when the comtrol in
service is wransferead to the costomer when (he ssrvices have boen provided by the Company.

Anndsal Accounts J02E-24




Iserven Technology Private Limited

iv.  Inberest income - Interest ncome s recognised on o time proportion basis taking imo account the
amount autstanding snd the rate spplicable. Interest income is included undes the head ‘Othes
income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income from financial assets is recognised
when it is probable that fistare scanamic benafits will flow 1o the company and the amount of
incoanee can be measured relinhly.

G INCOME-TAX
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the taxable income of the current
reriod hased on the applicable income tax rates adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and vnused fax losses.

{i) Current Tax

The current income tax charge is calculated an the basis of the tax aws enncted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries and assoclaces
openate and generate taxable income. Managemens periodivally evalisates positkons taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax negulation Is subject to interpretation. It cstablishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(i} Deferred Tax

Deferred fax is recognised on temporary differences between the camying amounts of asiets and linbilities
in the financial staterments and the corresponding tax hases 1sed in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable lemporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recogrised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
to the extent that it is probeble that taxable profits will be available againgt which these deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. The appropriateness of carrying amount of deferred tax assets and
Hakility is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. Deferred tax liahilities and assets are measured af
the 1ax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liahility is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
perind, Deferred tax is recognised in profiz of 10ss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
ofher comprebensive income or dirsctly in equity,

H [INVENTORY
Imventories are valued at lower of cost of net realisable value after providing for ohsolescene’s ad other
losses, where considered necessary. Cost of lmventory comprises all cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their prasend conditions and locations. Cost of purchased inventory
is determined after deducting rebates nnd discounts, Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the crdinary counse of business, less estimated cost of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the
gale. [mvanories ane valued ot first in first out method.

I LEASES

The Company’s lease asset classes peimarily consist of leases for office premises, vehicles and equipments.
The Company assesses whether a contmet contains a lexse, at inception of a contract. A contract is. ot
conteing, 4 lewse il the contract comveys the right 1o comtral the wie of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a confract conveys the right to coatrol the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contact invobves the use of an identified asset (i)
the Company has substantially afl of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the
lease and (iii) the Company has the right 1o direct the use of the asset.
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At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes o right-of-mse asset ["ROU™) and a
corresponding lease liahility for all lease armngements in which it is a lessee, exoept fior leqses with 4 term
of twelve months or less (short-term lensos) and low value leases. For these shori-term and low value leases,
the Company recognizes the lease payments s an operafing expense o i strpight-line basis over the term
of the lease,

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminale the lease hefore the end af the lease
term. RO assets and lease Habilities includes these oplions when it 15 reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initally recognized ot cost, which comprises the initial amownt of the lease
liability adjasted fior any lease paymenis made at or préer to the commencement date of the lease plus sy
initial direct costs bess any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured ol cost lass secumulaied

depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Right-of-use assels are depreciated from the commencement date on a sirnight-line hasis aver the shorfer
of the lease term amd ugeful 1ife of the underlying assel

The bease liability i5 mitially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit inthe lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing raies In the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with & corresponding adiustment to the related right of use asset if the Company chanpes iis
assessment if whether it will exercise an extersion o & ermination optisn

Lease liahility and KOU asser have been separately presented in the balance sheet and leese paymients have
been classified as financing cash flows,

4 FROVISIONS
Provisions are recognised when the company has & presem obligation, legal or consiructive, as a resuft ol

@ past evenl, il is probable that an outflow of sconomic resources will be required 1 setle the ebligation
and a reliable estimaie can be made of the amound of the obligation,

Where & pn:nri:iun i3 mensured wsing the cash flows estmisted o settle the present obligation, its carmying
amount is the presest value of those cash flows, IF the effect of the tme value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a corrent pre tsx mie thot reflects , when approprinte, the risk specific 1o
the linhility.

Financinl instrument - initial recogmition
K FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
{i} Date of recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loang, debt gecurities, daposite and borrowings are
initially recognised on the trade date, ie., the date that the Compary becomes a party to the contracual
provisions of the instrument, This tncludes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of azsets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customer’s account. The Compary
recognises debt securities, deposils and borrowings when funds reach the Company.

(i) Initial measuresent of financial instruments
Thee elassificaton of financial insirumeants at indtial recognition depends on Uhear controciual terms and the

busiress madel for managing the instruments. Financial instrunsents are initially messured at their fair
valuz, excepl in the case of financial assets and Ananceal lizbilities recorded an FVTPL, trarsaction costs

N0
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are added 1o, o subtrscted from, this amount. Trade reccivables ars measured at the transaction price.

{iiii) Measwrement categories of financial assets and lisbilites

The Company classifies sll of its financia! assets based on the business model for managing the assets and
the mset's contractual terms, mensared o sither:

= Anodized onst,

* Fair value through odher comprehensive income (FYVOCT),

= Fair value through profit and loss (1°YTPL)

Financial Habilisies, other tsan kan commigments and ﬁn.am_:iu] guarantees, are measired s FYTPL when
they are derivative instruments or the fair value designation is applied.

L FIMNANCIAL ASSETS AND LIADILITIES
(i1 Bank balance, Loans and Trade recelvabdes af amorised cost,

The Company measures Bank balances, Loans and Trade receivables o1 armorised cost if both of the
follewing conditions are met;

» The fmancial asset is held within a bugines modz] with the objective o hold fnancial assets in arder o
oollect contractual cash flows

= The coniractual terms of the financtal asset give rse on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount sutstanding.

ia) Business model test

The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is.
whether the Company's objective ks solely 10 collect the contraciual cash fNows from the assets or 15 o
collect both the confractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the ssle of assets. The Company’s
busines mode] & ot assessed on an nstrument-by-instrument basis, bat ot a higher level of agoremated
portiolios and is based on observable factors such as:

» How the performance of the business maodel and the financial assets held within that business model are
evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management persdnmel

» The ricks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within thar
kisiness modzl) and, in particubar, the way thoss risks ane maneged

* How managers of the bisiness afe compensaicd

= The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also imporiant aspects of the Company *s assessment
The baminess mods] nsseasment 15 based on reasorably expected scenprios without taling ‘worst case’ or
*siress case’' scenasios into sccount. If cash flows after mitial recognition wre realised in a way that is
different from the Company s original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the
remaining financial assets held in that buxiness model, bt incorporates such informstion when assessing
newly originated or newly purchased financinl essets going forward,

il SPPI test

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cach flows or to collect comtractual cash
flowas and sell, the Company assesses whether fhe financial instrument’s cash flows represent solely
paymests of principal and imerest (the "5PPLest’)
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In making this assesement, the Company considers whether the contraciual cash flows are consisient with
a basic lending arrangement Le. interest inclades only consideration for the time value of money. eredit
rizk, other hasic lending risks and n profit margin fat is corsisient with a basic lending arrangement. Where
the eontractunl terms intreduce cxposure {o risk or velatility that are inconsisient with a basic lending
arrangement, the relsted finmieial asset is classified amd measured o fair value through profit or loss,

{1} Derecognition of financial nssets due (o substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognises & Mnancial asset, when fle terms and conditions Fave been reregatioted to the
extent that, substardially, it Isecomes a pew asset, wilh the difference recognised as derecognition gain or
loss., to the extent that & impalrnent Ioss has nol already been recosded.

When nssessing whether or pot to derecopnise any asset, amongst others, the Compary considers the
following factors:

* Change in currency
= Introdiction of an equity feafure
* Change in counler pary

If the modification i such thal the instrument would no lenger meet the SFPL criteria. 1F the modifcstion
dees not result in cash flows that are substentially different, the modilication does ned result in
derscopnition.

{1i} Desecognition of financial assets other than due to substartial medification of terms and conditions
(n} Financial assels

A Tirancii] assed (or, where applicable, 2 part of a financial asset or part of 8 group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights m receive cash flaws from the financial asser have expired. The

Compary also derecognises the financial asset if it bas both transferred the financial asset and the wansfer
gualifies for derecognition,

The Company has transferred the financial aseet if. and only if, either:

# The Company has transferred #s contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset,
ar

» i retaing the rights 1o01he cash flows, bt has assumed an obliganon o pay the received cash Nows
in full withouw! malerial delay W a thind pary under & “pess—through' arrangement
& trarsfer only gualifies for derecognition if cither:

s The Company has iransferred subsiantially 211 the risks and rewards of the assen, or

s The Company hus neither transferred nor retained substantinlly all the risks and rewands of the
aasel, but has ransferred conteol of the asset

he Cwmpapy considers condred 1o be tramsferred 7 and only if, e transferse has the practscal

ibliey b sl the asset B s entively o mn unrelated thind party sl is oble 1o exercise that abilin
uriibaberally wid withaut imposing additionnl vestrictions on the transier,
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When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially l) the risks and rewards and
has refnived control of the asset, the assel continees lo be m:ngnlﬁ anly 'ﬂ.::: ::lﬂ“ 'i'f“;:;
Coanpany's conlinuing imvalvement, in which case, the Company alo recignl 85500
liability. The irmsferred assel wnd the associated liability are measured on o basis lha reflects the
rights aiwd obligations thai the Company has retained.

Iy} Financial lisbilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, canceled
or expives, Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the ferms of an existing liability are mlhﬂlal_'ltlalhr rmodi fiesd, such
an exchange or modification is ireated as a derecognition of the original lighility and the e e
of & new Hability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and
the considerstion paid is recognised in profit or loss.

M DETERMIMNATION OF FAIR VALUE
The Company measures cerain financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a lizbility in &n orderly transaction
betwesn merket p:.rﬁm];lp.nb: ol ihe mepmeremeal date.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are approprise in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are aveilahle to measure fair vahse, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unohservable inpats. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial insruments
are chassified based on a hieranchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This inclisdes listed eguiry
ingtrements, traded bonds and mastual funds that have quoted price.

Lewal 7 financial instruments the fair valee of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
is determined using valuation techmigues which maximise the use of ohservable markes data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates, [f all significam inputs required 1o fakr value an instrement
ire obeervahle, the instroment is dncluded In level 2.

Lewe! 3 - If one or more of the significant mputs & not based on observable market dats, the instrument is
included in level 3. The Commpany evaluates the leveling nt each reparting period on an instrument-by.-
instrumient basis ond reclasifies instruments when necessary based on the facts 3 the end of the reporting
period,

M CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purpose of prassntation in the statement of eash flows, cosh and cash equivalents includes cash on
lend, deposits held at call with finencial instibstions, other shori-term, highly lquid imvestments with
original maturities of three months or |ess that are readily convertible to knows amounts of cash and which
are zubject to an insignificant risk of changes in valee, amd bank cverdmfis,

O PROPERTY,PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
All ftema of property, plart and squipment are stabed at historical cost bess depreciation. Historical eos
ircludes expenditure that is directly sitributable to the acquisition of the itens

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s camying smounl or recogmised 05 n separale assel, a8
appropriate, only when i is probable that fiture econmmic benefits associated with the item will flow 10 the
Campany and the cost of the fiem can be measured relisbly. The corrying amount of any component
eccouried For as o separals sl 15 derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and mainienance are
charged W profit or loss during the reporiing peciod in which they are incurred,
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(i) Transitien to Ind-AS

On transiticn to Ind-AS, the company has clected 1o continue with the casrying value of all of its propety,
plant and equipment recognised as at | April 2019 mensured as per the previous GAAF amd use that
carrving value as he deemed cost of the propery, plant and eguipsenl.

(ii) Deprecistion methods, cstimated useful lves and residunl value

Diepreciation is calculated using the siraight-line method 1o allosale their cost. net of their residual values,
awer their estimated weful lives prescribed in Schedide Il to the Companies Act, 2013, stated a5 under

() Compiter & equipiments - 3 vears
(k) Office equipments - 3 year

(e} Fumniture & foxdure - § years

{d) Wetwork equipiments - 13 vears

The assels’ residual values and usefial lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.
An assel’s carrying amount is wriken down immedisely to i1s recoverable amount {f the asset’s carrying

mImounl is greater than its estimated recoversbie amount. Gaing and bosses on disposals are detemnined by
comparing procesds with camrying amount, These are included in profit or [oss within other gains/ (losses).

P INTAMNGIBLE ASSETS

Am irtangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured rellably and it i@ probable that the
expecied  future economic  henefits that are atiribudable to it will fow do the Cofmpany.
Imangibie assess acquired Separatedy are measured on initial recognition at cast. The cost of an intangible
asael aMnprises its purchase price and any directly aftibutable expenditune on making the asset ready for
its interwded use and net of aoy rade discounts and rebates. Following initial recognition, mtangible asscts
are caried af cest les any accumulated dmortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The weful bves of intangible assets are asiessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are amortised over the useful economic life, The amartization period and the amorisstion methad for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at lesst st each firancial vear-end, Chamges in the
expected usefil lfe, or the expected pattern of corsumption of fiture sconomic benefits embodied in the
asset, are accowmied for by changmg the amortsstion period or methodoloegy, as appropriate, which are
then treated as changes in accounting estimates, The amortisation expense on infangible assets with finite
lives is presented as & seperate ling ifem in the statement of profit and loss. Amortisation on pssets
acquired‘sold during the year is recognised om a pro-rata basis to the Statement of Profit and Loss from /
upio the date of acquisiticnsale.

Amorisation is caloulated wsing the straight~{ine method o write down the cost of inangible assets to their
residual values aver their esfimated useful lives.

Cialns or losses from derecognition of imangible assets are measured as the difference between the met
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel are recognised in the Stabement of Profis and Loss

when the asset is derecognised,

The Company’s intangible nsseis comprise of sofiwars, mobile application, website and tradensark. The
ineangible assers are amortized over its finite useful economic life.

Software Development - [0 years
Trade mark- 10 Years
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Q OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Research cosis are expensed as incurmed. Software product development costs are expensed as incurred
unless techmical and commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future sconomic benefits are
probable, the Company has an intertion and ability to complete and use ar sell the software and the costs
can be measured refisbly. The cosis, which can be capitalized inclwde the cast of material, direct labour.
everhead costs that are directly aitributable to preparne the asset for its intended use.

R IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSET

Mon-financial assets are tested for impalrment whenever evems or chanpes in clrcumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the assel’s comying amioued exceeds ils recoversble amouns. The recoverable amount is (he higher of an
asset’s fir vadus less costs of disposal and value In use. For the purposes of sssessing impainment, assets
II-I-'E'EI'ﬂ'I-IHﬂ al the |owest lavels for which there are n!pu.rﬂﬂlj identifiable cash infloses whech are I:Bfgl.‘-l]r'
independent of the cash infiows from ather nssats or groups of assets (cash-genersting units), Non-fEnancial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviswed for possible reveesal of the impairment
at the end of each reporing pariod.

In assessing value in use, the estimated fitore cash flows are discounted to their presemt value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects curment market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
1o the assel. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
aecount. [f o such transactions can be identified, an appropeiste valuation modsl is used. These
calculations are cormoborated by valwation multiples, quoted shane prices far publicly trded companies or
other available fair value indicators.

5§ SEGMENT REPORTING
Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chied
operating decision maker, The Company”s primary business segments are reflected based on the principal
business carried out, 1.2, Revenue from sales of services such as 1T enabled services and ransaction based
services and sale of devices. The risk and returrs of the business of the company is nod associsted with
geopraphical zegmentation, hence there is no sacondary segment,

T EARNIMG PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

» the profit attributabde te owners of the Company
* by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,

Dilwted camings per share adjusts the figurss used in the determination of basic cannings per shase to take
inbe accunt:

¢ the after income thx effect of inlerest and other financing costs sssociated with dilative potentind equity
chares, and

+ the weighted average mamber of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilative potential equity sharss.

U ROUNDING OFF
All amooris disclased in the financial statemenis and nofes have been roumded off to the nearest lnkhs as
per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated

A0y
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¥ CONTINGENT LIABILITY )
A contingent ligbility i a possible obliuation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the accurrence o non-securrence of one or more uncertain fulure events beyond the contral of compary
or o present obligntion that is nol recognised hecause it is not profahble that an autflow of resources will be

required 1o seitle the chligation. The company does net recognise a contingent fishility but discloses its
existence in the financial simtements. Payments In respect of such lishilities, if any are shown s advance.

W PREVIOUS FIGURES
Financial statements have been prepared inaccordance with the Companies (Indien Accounting Sandards)
Rules . 2005 | INTY AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other recognised
accounting practices and policies 1o the extent applicable. The previous years figures have been
regrosped/reciassites whesever necessary. fo make them companshle.

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMFTIONS

The preparstion of the Company s financial statements requires management (o make judgments. estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
sccompanying disclosures. as well as the disclosure of contingent liahilities. Lincemainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes 1hat requine a material adjusiment 1o the camying
amounr of essets of Rabilities affected in Tuture periods.

Tudgmumis

In the process of applying the Compeny’s sccounting policies, management has made the following
Jtﬂ_gm:n‘bi

(1) Bosiness mode] assecimen

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPP and the business
model test. The Company detenmines the businzss model at a level that reflects how Compsany s of linzncial
assets are managed together to achieve 3 particular business objective. This assessment includes judgrment
reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their
performance measured, the risis that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and
how the managers of the assets ane compensated. The Company monitors fingncial assels measured af
arnortised oost that are derecognised prior 1o their marurity to understand the reason for their disposal and
whether the reasons ars consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was beld.
Monitoring is part of the Company”s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the
remaining financial assets are beld continues to be aporopriate and if it is not appropriate whether there b
been o change in business model and 50 a prospeciive change to the classification of these assets,

{ii} Fair vahae of financial instnaments

The fair value of finsncial instrumenis is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o fransfer
a lighility in an ordedy transaction in the principal {or most advantageous) marker at the measurement date
umder current market conditions (i.¢. an exit prive) regardless of whather that peice is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial asets and financial
liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using
a variety of valuation techrigues that inslude the use of valuation models. The inpuns w these models are
taken fram observable markets where possible, but where this is not Fensible, estimation i3 required in
establiching fair values, Judgments and estimates include considentions of liquidity and moded npots
related 1o items such as credit risk (both own and counterpamy ), funding value adjustmems, comelation and
vizlatility,
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Accenmpanying nafes to the financial stvtements
far the year ended 315t March, 2024

HMote §- Right ol ase Azsets:

Lirass Carrving Amgand
Crpenisg Palance
Addiions
Dreductions’Adjustmest

2 I
Cloging Rilasce

Accumuluted Depreciation
Opening Balance

Additions
Dieducsians’ | usmen
Amorisilien

Clnsing Falance

Tadul
(Refer Note 29)

Mede 6 - [nventorics;
Fteck-in-trade

iy afiarel aved ceenied by the Msrgemenry

Mote T - Invegimenti:
Current Investments (FII)

Motz & =« Trade Receivwbles:

Trade Receivables (Considered Good (Secuszd))
Trade Recelvabbes (Considered Good (Unseoared))
Trade Receivables

Mode 3 - Cash and Cesh Equivalents:

{Cash in hand
Bialances with Bank (Cureed accounls)

Maie: Thers are mo repairalion reswictions with regard o cosh
enid cash equivalents as at the oo af the repomting poriod

anl prior periads

Ancual Accousis 202324

Iserven Technology Privaie Limbted

(amosar e Laci)
ETT R ETEIE
Sl g, 2074 Frlawth; FAED
255749 (BBl
= L5605
155709 I,TI8.R4
AT 142
TiM 12224
471,51 199.50
LAKD. 38 | 328 58
— —a
L5540 £18.29
o — ey
IIL!I?.E‘.I 257784
1,3M7% 2,280,014
140231 TOT.57
L A02.31 THT.87




Ngdr 19 = Other Mom-Current Aswic
§ecurity Thepoaiis

Maite 11 - Loani and Advescis:
{i} Loan regeivabli (Considersd Good {Secwred))
(it} 100 receivahle Comsliered Good (| hserred)

Lo 80 Emplorees
{(Hher kns

il Loen receivabile which heve significant incresde in eredi risk.

{1%) Loan receivabils credil inpared,

Mobe 12 - (eiber Current Assefs:
Frepasd Exponses

Advanees Salary

Advance T § Met of Proviseons |
Statmory Dues

Ditics amd Wxcs recoviamh i

Huge 13 - Diher Finascial Assets:
Advance W parlics

Adwence Reoovershlie in cashi or kind
(bssr {kanesal msets

Sate 14 - Deferred Tax Aszelz (ned)
Defeared Tax Asseis

The movement in deferred sax assets and linhilities during the
year ended § bt Muarch, 2023

Dieferred Tax Asset (Net)

Opening Balace

(DT} DTA o dilference of camying asoumnl Of Gsels
(peening s albawed on paymeni s and othes

Al Aciunis HI23-34

Iservei Technolegy Private Limited

LR R
Wareh, 2024

14707
 e———

25T

—
2657
e —

123,73
14.5%
Fanz

1.22

hid 56
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11513
BO3AT
17754
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TIaEX
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4497
el
104

117
25781
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131541
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{22.86)
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Iserven Vechnslogy Prvate Limifed

Avcungunying voles o (e Himechd stiemenls
For the vear enaled 1= Mareh, 1024

& drwarar e Liieid

Aa il sl
BT T T e L] A wRairek. ML)

Mt 15 - Equiiy Share Cogrtal nad Other Exubty:
A, Eguity Share Capilah
in1 Fapuily share apital

OO0 R g F 00 00 DM Bty Shires a0 &5, 1 cach M T
fiih lssued and Pasl-up Fguity Share Capital

232000 2 gl Shangs gl Bs, 1 ewch 132 TN
(i ¥lowements i Fguoity “hace Cipieal

232,00 230 0 ity Sheecs ol e, | oead 252 £33

Flhovenwng algimie b vem

AT 2 AR B ity Shares ul Ba, | oeach 237 A3

Farms o Baghis attsched o Bguny Shines

Mw Lo Fas onk e cliss of Gonity shares havine a par eakee of e Bach holder ol cquim shancs
i emitled o gme vie per shire, In the event ol Dowidotion of the Comgans, the belders o sty shire
will by antled 10 regeve aw ol the remaming assel of the compusy, ofter disbvbution ol i prolerential
inwiints. The disribunson will be W geopariian o the mundber of squity shares held by 1he shchoaldon

(v share ol the Company Beld by Holding Company
BT L EEITY) Equiny shanes of ¥ 1 each, Fully Faid-up
gl by Wivogin Frecel Limived |4 I 18

4 b Dodails ol Sharebolders Bolding mare thas 5% shares i (e Campiiny

Equity Shars A5 a0 M1 Mareh, 2024 As a3t March, 023
s T N el ol el SeonlShams %ol Dlalig
Pzl Mushapaies e 111 3AH,, 12 Rl b Fle |
LB Pynscad Saram b S20 B | il LT Y
Ami Tiasy 12.H00 5, 52% P3ann A
sanjib Farids |20 5 53v, 12200 RS
Lerpvibennin ki 12 K 5510, 12 kit ANy,
Roivopin | wnjech amnted | 18,310 b 1R O S | S0,
E-J-Ei‘l.l'll IO 25t li‘-'il_ (LU R

[iere e no Avares teskied 1or consideration malwer than cash.

(vip [hecails of shares beld by promoicr: an the scar eml
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B. Uiher Equily

Bserven Technobogy Frivite Limited

Ar ol S0 Mareh, 10248

%l Al Mnrch, 2023

BETUTILIES PR e

Lot Beteivl

Ketamed Famings

Medvomals e Ss-cosendely prelesenes shines

Mature & Parpose of e Reserve:

Specnribies prcEim Feserve

wockinties premen s crechbesd whey shoses ok psaed ar premiam

thee i i ol 1l Al

Carnnl Bevedved:

SaneTm b Produs Desdopment and Markdine!' Publbciy Assistance under Udisha Startop policy

Retsineed Earmimgs ¢

SOHT 4R
5 1

1 ARG 0]
b5

22000k

£ LRT4S
L]

P2151 98
1.4
1A40 K|

—_— .

This will Ise whilised in aeconlmce with

201

Repmed eammuos are the profiis thot the Company bas earmed 000 dae. bess anv trsslers o voerl neservee

dividends ar oiher distributions paid 1o sharcholders.

Hedvepatle men cwmulative man convertibde preference shares:
Hedeensahle mm cunmibiinee non converithle  preference  shones
Ul w01 B st bsed i coondnmee wil e paosissss af the A

(B} Secupithes promiem Feaeiy i acdaunl

15 creclied when

such

whares ane  assued

As ut Mat March, 2004

Anab Flsp Yerch, DO 3

Ligreniong balimce
Addutson durve Dhe vear an ssme of shares-
i lemimg Balancy

SARTA4S
SGHTAS

EbH7A5

SEETAS

i p e Rocvivaad

Asng Ms March, 2024 Asat Milsd March, 2020
Omeming balaage | S|
Additvon durdng tise vesr - -
U liane hobaice 5. LI & Al

it Hetaimed Larmngs

A5l 8051 Vinrou, 2024

s e 5081 Ylareh, 223

Chpenmie bafnnce
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Pservear Fechmslogy Private Lt

Liv) Bedeenmabile min camelalive vom eonveriibbe |H'l.‘.fﬂt'li'l.' shinras

Aanilir sl smp e e il

ks ni 0st Alnrck, 28039 Asal 31 Marih II.II.]-

Wilmher ol Tnijpmlier nf
A muiim sheres A iniiim shsires
P en0 g e Lk Uhaly b Preference Shares ol Tace value Rs 10
(Hgmees Ten oy esch wills eflias from Bebeygry 1], 2022 1E1.IHF " AlEANRI 101 () | TEENH

A al 31 March Tods Axal M 'ii:r{h ]

Capital Conlrilmrion
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Accanpanying nofes to the lanicisl sinlenents
lod e vear cieded 3151 Mareh, 2024

Mom=Current Linbilivies:

Bade [hia) - Lomg-term Hormowings:
Tvam fromn Lithers

Mote: Vidoeke Car e froin 010 hamk outetosil g omgunting
2462 kb s it 31032024 ane pasabbe n 38 nwsathily
el with ree ol merest 7,50%

Mote 16(h) - Short-term Borrowings:
i} Securod Lvans
Wirking Lapital Lo

Ml Uiy © reshin Bcilary abive of Bs 89371 lags (PFTev RS VEur
Bt is davasled Tro Unses Bank of lndia which is sscured
h}'n:pplﬂhi..tlllm al stischs s bock debis and [ged :I-:pnsil::
of Be A0 s sl persoia ] guaranies by Directors

il nseoured Lians
Lvown frowy Directors
Loan from Cihers
Foaim fromy Miviszin - Capatal Contnbision

Sware 1T = Chher Lidblinies;
Alatulary Dues

Mote 1H{a) - Trude Pavables:
la) Duie o Micro Ertreprize and Small Erreprise
Credilurs for Expenses

P Praes o ered o other fhan Micro Endreprise ard Soall Entreprise
Lradilors e s peises

Sage 18 (b - Ciber Fonaocial Laabilities:
U oblivien tevemads claannel porners
Pravogsiom lor gapenses

kb T Janainds s i lisn

Sevorady lemist el

P e eevoived s e

b Tralvibiny

Rikiiinal N g M o

Iservew Technology Private Limited

Koy il

Bl March, 2024

1443

B3 T

4.00
2.50
1.145.57
2056,

32T

1140

69,16
£72,70
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lserven Technolegy Privote Limited
Agcompanying mebes to the fsencial siatements

for the vear ended 3158 Marek, 2024
[Araiar in Lo
Freviaus
Yrar eniled yrar embed
=Plapedd H-Hlwr 1R
Mote 19 = Revense frem Chperafisns:
Device Sale 17043 R56.46
Commizsion lncome 1432005 6, T246.51
Licensing [ntegration fecs 36167 ARE 6
15,5125 B,0AE.51
Mot 20 - Oiher Income:
Iiscount Roceived 0,35
Excess Provison write back - M2
Murketing Fees o 61.73
Inteeest on Fined Depasis 25108 170,30
Interos! income of Securiny Doposit 122 5.1
Interest on lncars Tax Hefiand 17.73 4.0
Sponsharship Servicas ET1 1.4
Enezres: on Employee Advanes 150 4.28
Sorviv Ingoeme ni7? | E& 50
Oitber Imcomnc 24,04 | &3
Benial Income 3 10
Foregin Exchange - 565
Interest an Lioan ¢ Advanes - .50
144,37 E00,39
Moie 21 - Cost of Services & Parckases for Steck:
Commission Cast | 145872 b,21184
Purchases of Devizes 454,44 LIT5.50
I xS
Mite 21 - Change in laveniories of Steck-in-trade:
Openieg stack JIRE9 19081
Closing stock FEE 4 SIE20
[47.11) I]]&Iﬂ
Mute 23 - Employee Benefit Expemses:
Galeries, wapes, banus &g 1914 %A 151517
EPF (Esaplover Centr.) 47.72 3397
Siaf welfare sipeses 7o 41 %1
Girmtnity sxpense 215 15.90
207416 I:E-I.'I.Si
Mote 24 - Finance Costs
|mieres co loan 14653 115610
Ineres: expenses an lease lability 2d4.02 5594
90,54 | &37.54
Note 25 - Depreciation Expenses:
AmariEmtion of ROL 33491 10341
Diepreciaion LTRE o4
J36.0h 165 K5
{7 M [‘e’ |:'|




[serveu Tﬂhuﬂhﬂ' Provate Limibey

{Amunnt by Losyy
Frevioms
Year el yror eaded
I0Mur-4 MM 23
Mobe 26 - Dther Expiimsi:
Adlvertseneent charges [EE! 13.49
Imtirest e GET .40 -
DOilfice Repair & Maintenance 46K S8
Commasicalion expeises 4513 Hn
Rent epenaes 516 19.94
IT cxpenses A 523.03
Commsiimesd charpe - 1T
Trenelling cxpenscs i1 I8 4LA3
Auditars Bemuneration - -
Legal & Prafessicnal fees 8275 1563
Rates & Tax 025 -
Firsl line delfal guaranice ¢oa [35.07) 37142
Miscellancous exporsdilume T2 505
Bad deht = |54 &7
Provisien for dowicfal detn 43138 a13.00
Trasaction sewleman wrilen-off 14125 -
Advances writen=off 144,34 -
Membership fess 0.0 15.00
Beank chirges D007 LA
217756 1E RS

Anmunl Accowmis Wk



Accompanying sotes oo the Fmancinl siafemenis
for the vear ended 315t March, 2024

Note 17 - Enrnings per Shure
Thie basic cammings per share bas beem coleulped based on the Gollowing:

pot prodit ufter 1 available fer cyuity sharcholdors
Wiighoed mcrsgs numher of oquity shares

The reconciliation betwees the basic s the dikeed cimings per share is o foflows:

Hasic earmings per diane (7
Effect of dikation
Diboed camings per shame (T)

Weighted average number af cquity shares is compased for the purpase
of calculating dibuted eaming per shase, after piving the dibtive Impact
of the putstanding Wock opdices for the respective yoars,

Weighted sveraps wamber of shares for compuswdon of Brsic BFS
Dilutive effect of putstanding sieck options

[Hlutive efizct of cominges] comshderinon

Anti Diluive poseatinl outsteading Hock optons

Angi Dilutive pascatinl coringent considoration

Welghted mverage number of shares for computation of Diluied EPS

Annuil Acoousts HI2k-24

Iserven Technobogy Private Limited

Aanl

Jnt MEarch, 204

{1,317.78)

21,3200

(572.10)

{7210

4, 32050

|
I:'I?.i

Koyt

'."-""‘ Lo
il o 1
\@r.;} " oy
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[Amet fa vl
Aa i
izl March, BRI

i2,207.06)
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(O50.50)

(90.54)
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Accamparying medes to the Bnanchl slatenents
far the year eaded Yo March, 2004

el in L)
Adar As.
Bt el JEL et Murch HTLE

Mode 38 - Contingem! laldifies snd commiEments
{i Ut extent nol proviied for)

(A} Combingen Linksilities
There are no oomtingen! Habilities ps al
1V In respost of dispased Ineome-inx masices (Befer bokoawy nede §)
0 1 respeet of disputed Goods & Service Tax Moen

(I Commulménis

IEstimated amount of contracts rovaining io be excated on capilal
account and not prosided For:
(&) Property, plant and equipment .
(b Intangisle Asscls
Intangible asscts -

Mote 29 - Lemses:
Dischasurcs as roguired wrader [NEF A5 116 - Lesses

{n) Cm adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company has rocognized bense Habilitics for all keases which were previousiy
classificd as opessting leases under carlier GAAP. Ind AS 116 docs et provide classification of leases into
operating and fimance Jease for the kessee accousding. The lease liability & measured o present value of the lbase
payments discounted a8 incrementsl bornoming rebe a8 on | Agril 2009, The lesseds inaremenal mle applied w
these hease Linbdlities om | Apnil 200% 18 11%

Lcase Babalilics i3 disclosed under the *(dher financial lizbilines™

Fastigulars
Irteres expense on leese [iskility 244,00 G5 54
b} The Company has recognied Right of Use (RO} assets corrssponding 1o the lease |mbflices as per the

reqairements of Ind AS 116 The ROU aszeis e amomized & SLM basie over the leage termoreconcilistion of
carrving ammount of right of e assed foe s lesa: & per N1 A5 116

Paniculars

As o Tet April, BIX2 L3R
(+} Recopnition of Right of we asse during the year [
i-3 Derecagaiven of Hight of use asset doring the year TEST
(=3 Amriization of Kight of e mset 43127
Az an 3150 March, 2023 152349
i+ ) Fecapniibom of Right of use wssot during the yoar LRl
=3 Derecopeition of Rigli of use sssel denlng e vem

{= 1 Aireridsabion |||-]'|.|‘||I ipl usss ipen el X1

Aua 3 .'-.-Inr-:h. R 1080 3R




lservew Technabogy Privite Limited

ACCumjiamy big miles i by Tieaneanl siptements
Fir the venr eoled 318t Mureh, 2020
I Simmad an | s

A ui aai
Hhai Murek ki APsd Vlareh 200
Foie M - Corponite sueinl resglaimsililiy PUSR') eapenses;

Frowisioms of Section 135 of the At ore m appicalsfe o the Conygrny

Mate 31 - Segineni reporiing;

ChsTEE st ine wemsieenls sl ple camnEiey whosw apernting sesulis gre regulinly feviciel by e £l
Cperaing Decisane Maker ('CODMY o make devisiony aboul resiurces o he wlhmadel ws e seemend i ARy
s g ormngnee sad lar which diserene linaneial mforneation is avallible

Pl 4 mgrians i cissped ey s Lhe busiess of “Hasiness Comespilawe Serviees" undy. takine inhg seean
Eles pishs Limd Pk, ths Oreid Aaiion stviare and ke dlemgl repsiiing systemse. Al the cpenmsms ol i | alrifny

e i o Al R Lrril jissuly ol e L'u||:|1nr|.:| e lisated in Fintiin. I"'Ilmﬂ“rlﬂr}. b mre 1Nk SRR £l mﬂahh.
SR as T Ind AR T0E “Omeriging. soomemis™

Mate 37 - Rebated porty disclosupes:
VbRl panty disclosines as reguined by lud AS 24 - Related Parmy Disclosures

ot wd meline puart s amd relafivnships:

Mo MNavare of el lionship

i Contrailing Emtiny
Nivawin Finlech Limped

[ ]

Frebipraamd S
Annn | yaer

Kooy manseement ersonnel

Matare of Relutionship

Haobd e Oy

Mature of Kelattonshin
Lhirectaor w.e > 270802015
Lirector w, e f= 1S 07020 |

Mo Exeoutive [Mrechor we j« | 31011 M2
Non Engutive Direciar woe = 110] 2120
Indemendeny Dinccorw,g [~ 2507 2521
Direewmr—a i 0= 0T 002003

LU ompany Sepretar

Fisbencler Haragp singls
Al Vs Bagpad
auibfiasen Sricim
Mhhishek Thakkar
swela Moanniy
Franss s with relsted parties are as follows:
AN e | arsi
s i s Yhare i My

Hil iy ey itinnsinsani
gy Ty
LS TR A T RS TR T 137
bl BT T {5507
ELimisrndiim
e Deninvasad Saraisi 00
S a1 g 241
il B TIN5 P ) sl
§ Wimdonenid im | s
Newal Rl Vg M3
sy Rt miieiEcE
LR HERL [T
L oirmne s ingvinss EEE ]
VB LG L e T 1n2
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W Lichinsemd % o
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lserven Fechnubigy Privale Limited

Mol 32 - Kelaied pary discosires (Coniinsed):

ks mitsdarnibing Than relaiod Pt e ds Poblises
IRTTTTTHNTN TN

A an Blal Slaeeh 204

halilijig Kty pniigcimod
Lasmipass (LRRTHTTIN
Besvamiie Moconeized %
P T i
Heianersgm |hasahly 4 i
e o Bomuegraiu
S0 b and S i
Ml A Tigr 2
s Swera Mahoh, (i
Loam Froen [Mreciors
Mbr Dehiprasid Saramsi 1.4

fak Rl s dizclosures os reouined by Ind AS 29 - Rzinivid Pary Discbiepres, e wermad)

Balanees autstanding from related serties are as Gillows: 1 o s

LA L
i L
Jls viarcs s Flal Marrh M21
Bows IUNAsLMeNE perime|
Lanin From Uipegnis
M Debapnisad Saranui i o

AR aseiiciions wah these relotad parties wre priced uoan amics lengzih hirses
Mone sl the balanees is secured.

(b1 Disclosures as per Resulaion 53R af Secoritise and Exchange Board of India {Listing (bligations and
Fiisilosure Reguirgments Regulions. 20155

Foams and sdvances i ke nanerd of Tanns i cornpamicd b which ditectirs are ivicrestod TR

Wasimam
LS T Pyl piias
[[F ST LEIT ]
eilglakdiig for Kaaly jhia buuig e v
Anmamiied HlE e ek g LTI wiider) i
e Sl Pl T2 Morch X004 Juas Yhandi Wi
£ [Hi Tl T ki TE
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Iserven Techoolegy Erivate Limited

Mote X3 - Dies of Micrn, Small & Medium Enterprises :

Bewacd i w40 the oxtent of the information reccived by e Company fom the sapplien during the vear
regarding their statis wider the Micr, Smenll and Medinm Erterprises Dovelopment Acl, 2006 (MSMED
Acl, the total outsinnding ducs of Migro and Small cnterprises, whicdh sre cuistasding for morc fan the

stipubsied period nnd sber disclonins as = the Bdicrn, Smnll snd dedinm Hnterprises Mevelopment At
20606 pre given below

[Amaad in Las |
Aaal A wl

1ot Miwech 1024 oot el 3035
Principal smeurd poyable 1o supplicrs as at year-mnd Lia

Interes due thereom as ol year end -

Imirest amount Sor delayed payments s supplies pursuant 1o provisions of
MSMED Act netually paid during the year, imespective of the year 1o which
the imlores, refanzs

Amieet of delnyed payment aciually sade b supplicrs dusing the year

The amount of isterest duc and payable for the period of delay in making
peyment {which Bewve hezn pad bul bepond the sppointed day during the
year) but without adding the interes specifbed under MSMED Act, 2006

Enteres aceneed and remaining unpaid at de end of e yoar . F

The mmpunt of flmber interest soneming dug and payeble even in the - -
warceeding vears, until sach date when the irened dues as shove acs actunlly

pead th the small epterprises for the pampese of disafowance & 8 deductihle
expendinae under the MEMED Ad, 2006,

Aol Sosiais JERL L



Iserveu Technology Privaie Limie

Agcompanying nates 1o the nancial statements
for the year Ended 3151 March 3024

Mate M - Empleves benefit plan 1
Dischosure in respect of employee Benclils ander Isd A% 19 - Employes Beacfit e as under:
(a] Defined conribution plan

The Company's eontribution to providest fund and employee siale insurance seheme are cansidered as defined
contzibulion plans. The Company has conlribuied ® 4971 Inkhs dusmg the Mamcial year cul of which £.47.72
lakhs Bas been recognised in the simement of profit and ks under the head empleyee besclits cxpense and the
balance & 159 bbb is capitalised mnder Intangible Assets under Devlepment . The Company has contribated an
amoust of € 0,81 Inkhs as coniribulion 1o employes state insurance scheme which has been recognised in the
statemsent of profit and loss under cmployes benelil expenses.

(b} Defissd benefia plan:

(rrabsity
Financisl ssscis not measared ar falr value

The Company operates a defined benefit plan (the 'gratsity plan') covering eligibie employees. The gratusty plan i
poverned by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the scl, employee who bis eomplesed five years of service
i% entithed b specific benefiL The level of benelits provided depends on tee member's length of service and salary
0 pesiremen ages resigamion dme.

The defined benedit plans expose the Company (0 risks such as acluarisl risk, Tiquiditg risk, market risk, legislative
risk. These are discussed as follows:

Actuarinl risk: [t is the risk that benefits will cost mare than expecied, This can arlse due to one of the following
rensens

Adverse salary grewih experience: Salary hikes thal are highes than the ssumed salary ssealaton will resaltinto
m imcrease m obligation a3 e that & higher than expecind,

Yarishility in morality retes: 1 actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rale assampeion than the
pratuity benefits will be paid esrdier thin expected. Since there & ne conditien of veming on the desth benefit, the
peceleration of cagh (low will lead 1 an acbaacial loss o gain deperding om dhe relative values of the asumed
slary grawih and discoan mie.

W arishility in withdrawal ratcs: IF sctual withdrawel rases are higher lhan assumed withdriwal rte assumption
then the gratuity bemefit will be paid earlicr than cxpected The impact of &is will deperd on whether the
benelils are vesied &3 o e resigeation date.

Liquidity risk: Employess with high salaics and Jong durstioes of those higher in hicearchy, accwmlac
significont level af benefits: I same of such emplayecs resign |/ retirs frem she Company, there can be strain on
the cash: Nows.

Maket risk: Market risk is o collective wrm for risks thal mfe selaied 4o the chonges aad fluchustions of the
financial markeis, Oee actusrial asursplion that e o mideral effect is the discourd rate. The disgouns raie
reflects the fime value of money, AR merense in discouny e leads o decrense in defined benedil abligation of the
phan henefits and vice vena This sssumption depends on the yiclds on the government hoads and hesce thy
sluatinn of liskiliay is exposed (o Moctustioas (0 he yields osal fhe vahision dute

T
CeRULoS
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Legislatve risk: Legisktive rigk is the risk of incrense in the plan liskilities or nediscibon in fhe plan asscls des 10
cange i the lepiskationregoiation. The governmenl may amend the Pryment of Grawity Act, 1972, thus
Tequiring the compunics 1o pay higher benefiis 1o (he employees. This will direcily offoct (e present salss of the
defired benefit obfigntion and the mme will hive to be recognived immelisecly i the year when any such
amendinenl b4 elfedive

The status af grtaity plan as requred usders Ind AS-19 is a5 onder
[hmeainl bn Lacs)
As ml Jnm A il Jar March,
Murch, 14 1123

{1y Beconeiliation of openmp wnd closing balenees of
defined benefit ohligation
Present vadoe af defined bencft obligntions m the 29K7 0.
beginming of the your
Current service cos 1G0% 100K
Pasl service codl =
Intensst cast 217 .70
Acquikition adjustment h -
Bemensuremen| doe o
Acturial lasygaim) arising o change i Gnancial L5 (3]
BRELTTIEOn
Acturial lassigain arlsing from change in i
demographic azsamptian
Asturial loss'{gain) ariang on account of experience T4 1033
CAEAEES
Henafit paid .
Re-megsuremert (or Actusrial){gain) / loss arising
{rom:
Chespe in demepraphic ssumpdlens . =
Chespe in financial assamations - =
Experience vasmange (12, Actual experiencs vs - =
assumplions)
Prezend value of defimed benelit obliggions at the ead 346 957
of the year

[ii] Heconcitiaiion of cpemng &nd closing balences of the
Tuir value of plan asmts
Fair value of plan asweis & the end of ihe year

(i) Hecomciliation of the present valie of defined benefit
ohligation and fair value of plan assels .
Presenl value of defined benefit ohligations 2t the end 344 I9RT
al the year
Fair value of pian asseis at the end of the y=ar »

Unrecognised pasl serios oo -

Bde nsser / (lizkilicy) rocopnized in the belance shest (33461

Apmiial Accounds 20070=34



Accampanylng mobes (o the fNssncial stastemenin
for ke year Ended Yst March 2024

ik}

i)

¥}

[wil

Diefined betiefit plan: [Cantisued) ...
Gratuity (Contimaed) ..

Experese necognised dusng the year
Curreas service cost

Inierest cost

Past service ool

Expenses recognised im the staterment of profit and
e

Onher commprehensive mcome

Cipening amevant recogrised in (0] oanside peoll &
loss account;

Components of ecluarial gainosses an obdigmions:
Dhue to changs in finaneiel esumptions

Dhie 1o change in demogeaphic ssumpdion

[hig 10 experiens adjusmets

Ritam an plan assets excluding amounis inchuded in
ioterst moamo

Ceenponents of defined benefit costs recogeised in
other comprehensive income

Prncipal sclusrl asiamplions
Diigcaund rate {per saeum)
Annual incresse in salany cost
Wilksdsawal raes per anmum

11 30

31w 34

3500 44

4540 50

51to 54

1340 57

Iserven Technology Frivate Limied

[Amaunl in Lacg
g owl ¥lai Jyn i Jiel Mineh
Mlarch, 2124 2033

1600 10.18

7 0.7

18.26 1. B8
10,34 L.B3

1.5% {131)

i I35

Sk} 1LR4
T2 T4
T T.00%
15.00% 1 5.00%
10.00% 1E00%
£.00% £.00%%
3.00% 3005
2.00% 2.00%:
1008 1.001%

The disoouni rabe 15 based on the prevaifing markel viebds of Gowversmocat of ladie's bond a5 & the belanss sheel

date: Por the cstimaied tem of the obligatioes.

(v} Sensitlivily anatysis

Signdlicam acuactal assemptions for e determization of e defined benefit obligaion are discount mic and
expected salery ncrease . The sensitivity amlysls below have heen determined hased on rasonably possible
chanpes of (Be assumpdions aceurring al the esd of the reporing perind, while balding all cther assumgines

constant. The results af sensitivty asalysis s ghven bebow:

Adiiiual Avooupis 202324
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o nt Dot Murch, 2024 Ax i BEai Murch, DS

Insrease Drsrrae Ingress g

[iscount mie {+ /- 0.5%) 7.710% 0, 0% T.9%% . 95%e

(¥ change compared o base dug e <3.01% 0.39% -5.70% 1. 3%
Aendilivily

Salary grosils falg [4 ) - 0,53 7.50% 6,509 1.5 5P

{% change conspared in base due 1o 6. 16% 5% h2% -5.Rd%
smsilivity)

vl Effect of plan om the Compeaeny's fuiure cash flows
{2} Mntunity prefile of dofined besefil ohligation

The weighted average duratian to the payment of these cagh flens i 12,17 years,

agh fows () Datributios ()
Exposicd el (s over The: Teat (v
15t Folkowing Year 256 1558%
2 Folbewing year 284 1.71%
Ind Follywing Year 416 150%
4h Follovwing Y ear 4.9] Pl S
Sth Following ¥ear 477 2RA%
i5th Folbowing Yo 4352 2.60%
Tih Folknving ¥ ear 422 2.55%
Eth Folkowing ¥ car 340 206%
Sih Folkowing Vear LR 1.80%
Sum of vears 10 and nbowe 131,52 e
/r/'ﬂ—ﬁl.c;\g\
S, ¥ 3
13! R “I'E:,
s
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Accampanymg wales b e Tassoial sy
farihs paricd Ended A0e Slerck, 20ld

Mpie 3% - U lmss Feopsore af Mesreeinl sweis sail Baaielal labilsis -

Taerveu Teehaology Frivaie Limised

Amanay a K3yl
sl I lawin D004 X1 ol SIS ]
BT B Wl W T Tetal i
H-uﬁ-rﬂ;'nl e sarmirg Psnsnscariy il ....T'
P TPL A i — BEVIPL | yheee
Aons il e sl * 24030 4021 = = PeEY TO.8T
{Mark hadurce alber thar codh sul ek gurelens - ! 1 . = x z
Lasns ond mirasre i puriicy - - ICNE] [ . B AT 0 14
[T ST - - - s u - -
| beircarnil @1 doie Ui 3 C ¥ i
Srarral il codl - - . - - - -
Niemarrl ol eroeiied sl = 2 A NI 6T | d TR - - LA | LSTiM
Chizar seceivabien - 2, 38124 ;llhh - - 3. hi5 44 315 Al
il Tinandg il asses = = i - - 55,59 IEE M
Tl Flameoiad escers = - 231 ak | RIEEM - - T, :H.Ii| 'I'.II-1£
:i-r..l.- Prahics - - !EL‘H 5EI1.5."2 - - e S T RS AT
i rhey Sranc il habciner - - 4 TIERY | 4IEE) - - LA1331 [FCTERT]
Tetal Flamaaia lidsiliies - QAITIN | QAIFON = [T 3 T30
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Accompanying notes 1o the Financiil Siatements
far the period Ended on 3151 March, 2024

Mate 36 - Fair Valae Mensmrements

Fimpneinl Instrument by Chlegary
pAmoustln o)
As pd B0l March, 1034 s al Vi Warch 2020
Amribard ol Amaciied
FVTTL FVTPL it
— ——
Irveestments
- Lguity Instnemends . = ’ -
- Prefensnee shaes . - - -
= Fipads and Dchentures . - - -
= Mufml Funds . - : -
Diher Heceivehlss - 4 1AT4T - T
L e [ E - £27.66
Cash And Cash Equivalenis E 2402751 - TTEY
Beank balanes ofber than cash sad cosh equivalents - . - .
Cher Recoivables - il - 3 145,48
[Trade mesivables & advance reconvershle in cash or kind)
Cmher Financinl Assets . 62T . 2108
920561 L I4R3
Eisucial Ladidi
Trade Payahles . 528323 - A6ES.07
(kver Financial Lizhilibes e 433488 . 260531
9622.07 530034
- e ——rrre—
Enir valug Hierarchy

“Ihis secthon explasms the judgrments and estimest: mads in ceigmmining the G value of the financlal Inswramem thet arc
{4 recopnized and mezsaed & fair walug and (] measred s amortised codt and Por which fair valees o disclosed in
the fmescial staements. To provide as indicetlon sbout the reliability of ®e Inpats used in detomining fair valus, the
Company has classified &5 finsacial instrmenis into three levels prescribed under the sccounting smndard. An
explanetion of gach tesel follows undemeath sble

Annual Aceainils 2023-24



Iserven Technology Private Limited

Az ad 31 March 214

Carryiug Falp v e B arEEsE uing

iR lavel level B I.-r_rlll- Tolal
Finanginl asses®
Investmnis
= fronds and Db eniures S .
= Mdutunl Funds - s
Linares sl mdvances Ta.13 (R[] 1113
{her Keceivahios A,137.67
Cash And Cash Equivalents 24001
Bank balance ofher than cosh and -
sk equivalents
Security Deposits
Diher Fisamzial assets 2,549,532
Total Fizancial Assn 420563 - 11513 - LN E
Fmancial Lisbibnics®
Trads Fayables J2831.22
Lz Limbility 2.201.03 120,05 23,2001
Uther Firemcial Liabilsty 213
Tzl Flaanelal [Liakilies QE22.07 L 1200.08 . 2,200 413
As al 51 March 2015

Carvyieg Fuir valur meaverenienls wiing

[TOIT L Lved 1 level2 Level 3 Tatal
Financial assers®
Inwestmnents
= Bipnds and Dehenbarcs - Z
- Pfuual Funds - -
Lonam and sdvances 437 60 43766 AT 66
(nher Rexsivalles 157784
Cash Ard Caah Eggivalemts TOTEY
Bank halunce ather thas ek and -
cih ecpnvaleals
Szcyricy Deposits
{hher Financaal asseis F 40046
Toral Finamcial Asset 711483 - 42766 z 42766
Finmcial Labilitees*
Trade Payahles 268507
Lcase Liahlliny 133022 L5322 1.51].22
Cnbser marcial [iahility | EL 0
Tudal Financial Liakilfties 5,300,309 - 1,532 - 15332

The [:dl:|1|ll.ll}' Tsts vl i sz Dzt o o Tty valdoes (o asdh anid diish l.:l,||||'|.||||.'||1rL Bank balunces, ek ﬁq:'i.ﬂilh recivahles

1 A 8
< GEA0N
Arrual Accounts H25-2 1 I;I::“ .é./.;l ¥ |ﬂ




Iserves Technology Private Limitey

Enir Vislue Measuriment

Level |2 Leved | hicrurchy includes fnancinl inssuments messured wsing unadjusied quoted prces im petive markets thet
the Caenprny bas the sblity 10 nceess e the deatical axsets or liabilities. A fnsscial mstrament is classified as a Level
| nsesanement if i is listed on an cxchange, None of the Fisancisl sstraments of the company i Classilible & Level |
Azsets or LiahifHiy,

Level 2 : The frir valuz of foancal insrumess thal are sot raded in sclive markets & determined using walustion
technigaes which maximize the use of observable masket dutn cither dirceily or indirecily, wuch s quoted prices fod
similer ussets and lissilises in nciive markets, for subsinntinlly 1be full term of the inanciel insrumen bt do ned quakily
as Level | inputs. Fair valac of loans asd sdvances of the Compeany |5 measared using the kst month's lending raic. [Fall
signficant inputs royudired o i valug an iosnement arg observable the instrument jx inchaded s lovel 2.

Lavel 32 17 oae or more of e significans inpets is nol based in abservable markel dita, the Inssuments is included in
level 5,

Finaneal festnomenss valued af comying walue

The respective carrving values of cenain ee-halasce sheet financial instrumesds approxcimated their fair value. These
finemcial msinaments include cash in hand, balances with Bards, fimencial institulsons md money 51 call and shorl notice,
nerneed imerest receivable, nccepeances, deporsits payshle on demand, sccrued imterest payabl, and coriain other aisels
and Eabalities thel are consadered Fnancial ingtnisments. Camying waines were sssamed 10 be apprximale B vibed for
thise fnareiil iSrEnE a5 Moy are shee-lem n sare and helr recoeded amousts spprosimate fair vilues of an
receivable or payshle gn demand,

Anrual Accounts 02324



Accompanying notes to the financial stitements
for the perind emded 3154 March 2024

Mote 37 - Financisl imstruminls — Financisd rlsk mansgement

Iserven Technolegy Private Limbted

Liguidity risk is the sisk that the Compisiy will escounter diflicubty im mesting ihe shiigations associaicd with its
fimancial fishikities thal sre setiled by delivering cash of amolher Mnencial assel. The Compiny’s apprazch t masaging
Tiquidity is 1o eomare, m far a5 possibie, thal it will have sufficient liguidity to meel ils labiliies when they are due,
under both normal and siressed condisions, withen! incuming unncceplalide kosses or risking damags to the Campany’s
reputation, Due o the dysamic mabwre of the underlying basinesses, Company's Ireasary mainiains Mexbilily In
fuading b mainlaining svailahilivy ander commitled credh |inss.

ia} The ishle helow shews an endlyiis of msets and lishilities anslysed (miturity snalysis) accoeting 1o when they are
i be recovered o seftled,
jAmvamai i s
Al 1381 March, 2904 As st Miat Mlarch, 2023
Casrying  Within 13 Aler 11 Carping ~ Wihin12  ARer 2
wrrounl menihs -HL ameuni rennlb moeis
Financinl Knhdliies
Tmde pmables 543212 512 - 168507 268507 -
Oither fiancial Habilties LIBES 165247 248618 261531 Ispa 223120
Mem Fimancial liabilifies
Trovesong o159 G159 - 03,06 753,04 -
e neoin-fimanscinl lishilities . & < o = .
Finamcinl aizets
Cesh and cash G valenis 2,231 240231 TOT.ET b |
Henk halmce other than cash and . - . =
Receivahles 21,5 L1836 314548 314548
Lians apd advances o customers 116,03 11613 427,60 42766
Invescment securities - _
Curreng Ervesumenis (P 4 117,67 4 E3T.6T TETLE 2577 R4
Dither Rimwhcial agscls 1627 35537 255,08 23792 1806
Men-Bnaseisl Assety
|menme [ aesris 116.82 11682 11.28 15.2H -
R of use maset 20038 |, 52898  1347.04 IBL®4
Pmperty, plant sd oguipment 113,41 13341 151.31 ITER 11362
Tevtangi bl assels umder 43,14 14514 5,88 330 .58
developmct
Ievangible nsseis 4563 4565 1924 27 1633

O won-fimancial ssssis

(b} Mamnry Fatiem

Thee vabde below sammarises the maurity profile of the undiscousied cashfllow of the Compomy's Erancial linbditics :

Aoy i ool

Withim 12 Wilore than &
mnakhs 1-2 pewrs 15 pewrs yEars Total

Asat 31 March 24
Trade panahles 528312 - - - SrpEyna
Cither fimancial Rabdlities Qo ez L I45.87 213779
Lstse linhility 594 4l ill42 &e1.73 B2 TE 220559
A bt 3] Mareh 1023
Trade pavahles AR OT . - - EARLOY
(hher finencial Habdlities 41,00 - 10gE00
Lezase |mbilily 23631 23083 53




[serven Techrology Privaie Limited

e} The fllowing mble sets oul the enmrying omounts ol non-derivalive finmmeial assets and fsancial lishilitles eapecied
b he recovered or seitled more thim 13 mosihs afler (ke reporiing dole

{iAmaany i facik
A Aaat
Eimascisl apsts 113t Mmrch 324 314t Murch 313
Hiank halance nther than cash and 3 C
Loans and advarces i casiomers - *
Envesimeni securilles - d
CHher linaswial 152815 - 1506
Fimancial liahilies
Lease Liahilily I.546, 10 225731
{d] The ésllewing iohle sels oat the companents of ihe Cloorpy's Ligeddity Posarves
LaghAnd Cash Equivaieats fdmunirns o for)
Cerrving Cserying
amount  Fuir vales amouni  Fuir valse
Cazhand Cash Eguivaleis 2,402 31 - 0T E?
Hank balance other than cmh and cnsh equivalents . - u -
Total liguidity reserves 240231 = T ET -
(=} Allihe financial axs=ts nf the Compay as ol § [51 March, 2024, are onescambared
iNOLe,
. %/'M N
L Vg
‘#i\ iy
Fa
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AcrmmyiEnsing vodm ie ik Apancis] Eyismenis
far eha yrar ended Kot March 2024

Llmny i Laei
Ll Aam
Kot Mo, 14 Tl Margh, BI8
Ners Ji - Pavamas fram Camracs with Tutemers
Ser el b bawy 1w ihes @ s prrogation af e S e i T coaeaes wikh selfosers aad recoss (Hatlon
Histerrmed o Profs sl Loos -
INICOENIE:
Usmurnaien incamc P20 .70 81
Crosgrap il Mirkes
xdia [EEIRE] BT
Ak Tralia ' .
145115 5 11% 58
Tirmng of reecnues rougeliize
Sk aERETSl W & R in ling IEIZNES AT2551
iy oweeredl b ved lisag : £
Testal v Iremn st with & [EEFIRE] T, 7 1 1
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Male 3 - Toade Hexzivadle ageieg schedule |

Twrvws Techmalogy Provaie Larind

dpa B e 18
fur Fellows rem due daieef pryress Fubwt
ol [ewr (Br L L Ll [ |

Partymia i el i aar | Wi

e Dasdlgrared Tk secctvab s - copshfern pol - [Fesl oL a4k T + 3 [ IR ]
Ciil 1 iraved Tamde sebeivat es - wivh hive L 2 - 2 i & , o

sprelind lieious e crodil ok
chili Und isppricd Trade recoreabics — crodii bnpssind - - - = &
fivi Mot Thids reecivahies - carsd bened goed - - = - e - = -
%1 Mrpaimedd Traads recaliahilea  abrid hase sgni oo = a a = = a =

imoreasy in el rick
il PHrpeaiad Tomd sscarmb b — vl g brad B . . » . F e

- - 1.2.5%. 1% +7.41 607 = - LATR T
v s = e
i 1 WErak. hdk
Chatati bl Fur Bl org por il Bew e dur sl oF e myent
g D far =1 | I T ——

Fanaalus - - JuS] T yuars | ) pais . o] foimi
i1 Ulnilepuicd Timds rooed vibles - Cuinsikered good FLEAEY 2T 1%0% - - LIS
iy vl bpaned Trosks recalvabdis — which bavs - - - g " & a

dpraflean norers b oredi rigk
{103 U ipnind Tonde pernivahiys — ol iy imred e - - ] - - - - -
v Disparned Trade receivalles- oosdenad gaed - . * . £ -
i) Digpaned Trade fedeivables — whidch have sgnificam - = - 3 = = -
Inirense i oFdin risk
- (TR T T T, = % 590.14

Al Aviein 024




Mige 8 - Trade Fays bis s peing whedile

Isdirves Tethmalogy Frivaie Limied

5 Anom 11 Nhmy Frd
fleniwadep fer Inbre g preaes e doedais of pes mer
Ml Dur Fe [0 T [ TTI e Mlare iban 1
il T 1 rdeA Bl e ECEIL T R 1 prirn - yrarn Frars Trial
BASAEE 1IE il : LR
Diham W11 12813 Tivl 1
Dipibal dies - MEME
[hipuiod o ves - Olikis =
= 136 JaLis 18,13 - - ATL 36
A B Bas B5E1
T Chadntn il e it e i paorbos [ram dnd Aol prymenn
Bl Nhir b | Loa (han 8 | 4 momhe - § Wlarr ihan i
Falaalan [ T | o s, rron l perar 18 jrrirs | LEE i prare Tedai
S ST = -
[Hhers - - 9555 |#5% T - S0ELY
Crispiind ducs - BESME = = = . = = "
Ditepiiod ducs « Dl = = x F = - -
- 19533 L2 1L7E - IE II

Mot Al - Evani Ovceirineg after Dalscon Fhavl Drie:

T havw hoen po evenis sfier | be repeetg, il St reguine dischosere u these fisancial sucemens,

Aarud Aooisnms 202314
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Accompsny ing noles o the Gndmical sidements
o the period encbed 38 Mareh, 2024

Mot 42 - Trade Heccivalilis

Palaoes of wrdle receivishiles arg saubipect wi comlinmativn e e respeciig pariies angd comsegueninl i jesimaents,
arisang (P seomcilation, (Fom . The mangzenmnt s lwoovacvers ol dhe wice thae there will b nse igenial ad o i ity
T ik ||.'I.|.l_,|'l:|'|l i Fedier Male Mo, K

Fhe Compans bave smplemented BCL poficy inrelation o rade receivables, and accomling [y prow sion ol - 789089
ik bes s Bien grnoyiibed dairing (he year

Mote 43 - Trade Pavables

§rede patadtles are suBiect 1 conlismatoim from the reEspEstive Eriss ] eCmse el QOpLesUINeEnls af ey TR
pecoic oo, of ans. Tl insaagemeat s howeyver, of s view thar e sl e so o issiteragd Gdjssboceits n this
remamd . CRefer Male Moo L)

Mg 44 - Advinces o Pa s 1

Bl ol advineds o partics ane subiect o confirmeton from the respectiee oartecs and comsegaemial i) e=iments
s fronn reconc i wan sy Tle manciement s owever, ol thie view dhi there sall be o mmional odjiestinents
i s reand. (Beter Moee hea. 13)

Mate 45 - Crils and Serviee 1as

Falanues ot drs 1 oreegivable peivabli are subject vs peevncilialion sich tha G T pasnsl as an 15 Miech, 200

Py 4 - Lnbilities ton ards channgl pariners

Balomces o lishibity gowards chammel pariners are sehjest o conlicmation Fom tke mespective meichants and
comsegquentinl udjiestmenis acising from reconciliation, i any. The manuement is boweser, of the sicw thal there

il e iwe nanerial wdjmbmcnts bnthies pepacd {Belior Mate Mo, 18 (b

Mole 47 - Adv ances recoverable inocash or Kl

piabimces of sl vancss recoverable in cash or Kind represends the comtrol accoums with iansachon beaks wisch gre
pending Jur comsegucntial adpsiments arising from reconcilmoon, i any. The mansgemar s howosen ol e vies
Mg giecre scill beome meaccrid adjostments o this regeed and salf be reconciled 0 the due course i Boter Mate

S 1ap
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Accompanying noles to the Fnankal st iements
for the perind ended 31s March, 2034

Mute 45 - Relationshlp with Struck off companies

The company docs not have any relstionship wilh companies streck off {as defined by Compasics Act, 2013} and did
ot exfer Nl trssactions with amy such conpany for the years snded Murch 112024 and March 31,2023

Tinte 49 = Cryplocurrency or Yirtual curremcy Transut (o

The Company did nof enfer trmnsoctions in Cryplomroney o Virual currency daring the sear ended Margh 31,2024
{March 31,2035 ML),

Mote 53 - Additienal Regulatary Information
(i1 The Company does nol bold any tide desds of immovakle prapenies =2.0n 3 151 March, 2004

(il The comgpany has not doiw fur valuation of investrment propesty w5 it can not be massred relably a the same (=
net & liguid asssel sad not readily saleable

{1k} The coempany bas nod revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets] and isfangible
ESSE1S.

(iv]) Mo procesdings have been initsted duriss the year or are pending sgamal (b Company as al March 31, 2024 for
hoidizg any henumi propesty under the Benami Teansactions {Prohisidon) Aoy 1988 {as amended im 201 6} and nudes
made thereunder.

(¥) The compamy hxs nod been caclarcd ‘wilful defulier by any hank of finoncial institulion or govermment of &y
government athooity.

(i} The eamoamy his cemplicd with the mumber of lyyors proscrbed under the Comparsies Act, 2013

iwii) The company Bas ned received any fimd Eom amy person(s) of emingies), fnelnding foreign entitiss (Funding
Party ) with the understanding (whether recorded in writiag or otherwise) thas the compeany shall:

inj directly or indirectly lend or tnves) m other persers o entites Mentiflod br ssy manner whasoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party {UTimate Beneficlamics) or

(B praide any puaranbee, socurly of the fike on behalf of the ullimate bemehisanes

{viii} There were oo sckémes of Arrssgenents approved by (be competent authority during the fnancial wear in werms
af meciion 230 10 237 of the Comganies Aol 203,

iz} Previous vear's figures have been mgouped, reirrasged and ¢ or re cas, whersver considered neccssaury in
correspond with cumens year's ¢l assfication ik

{x] Amoumi have been muendod-ofT 1o the nessest |akds.

Annual Avoimis JU25=24



Iserven Technology Private Limited
Accempanying oodes to the Nannical stastemengs
fiar the ?ﬂ'm Emiled 3t March 2004

Nate 51 - Mote on Audit Teail

In the SAF. audit trail i trsaction lovel on application layer hus an embedded it wall n sublcdger acenusting
nkles which ercaics unique cvents for evory tanssction slong wish dwics of ereating usd updating tanssctions
ﬂhlhlihﬁﬂ'ﬂfmhﬁ%hﬂkmmmwmhmﬁgdﬁwmmdm date sad
creatoe of joumals are Cacked. This fealerr connot be disshled Additionslly, mudit trail was coubled G masters
and trassactiors in a phased manner. Audit trail Femture with respecl o epplication leper changss i seecouning
software has warked cffectively during the year, Post publicstion of HOAI implementation guide, direct detsbase
level chanpes was also inclided in audic emil seope In respect of SAP. sccess fo direst datsbmsc kel changes
i gvailible only 1o privikeged wsers aod ® B nol awildle o wny of the Company personrel, [howewer, the
softvware product owmess have condinned that there s no madit srail enabled for dats baze level changes.
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Tserven Technology Private Limiled

Atcempanying nodes o the Finanelal Smiements
fr thie period ended st Muareh, 2024

Noale S Ritins: T facs)
Year ended | Yenr ended 315t
{u} Current Ratio - Sist pdarch, March,
{1
[ Current Asseds Iﬁ]j! TAIT.54
Current Limh iz 110, i, 36 &, 450
Current Rale 11,14y .27
% change G proveoms yenr <4, T A%

Current mises inglude mvamonics, cument invesiments, fnde recelvables, cish nnd cash eqeivalents, bank balances niher
gan  cash and  oish oguivelents,  alhor feoncal opecis s dhor cureenl sl
Current labilities fnclude bormwings, lesse lisbility, imde pavahles, olber G linkilites, e provissoms and

other curmen [whililies.

Vear caded |Year anded 3ist)
{b) Debd Equity Baiie : st March, Mareh,
plirE] 20E3

Monscirrenl Borrowings = -
Current masiiies of Long-term Barmowings %
Orvendraflf Warkimg Cepitel Q0 1,03 50
Total Deb QIR 1A
Toul Equine kR E Laa
Debi Equity Ratio el X
o CMGE (PO [revicus year Ate] s

{eson foe chanpe more than 28 The ratio bas incomaed mainly due te sschision of e NI AS Accounting
Trcaimeni in ihe borowing & fjeting off bz in current IS
Year éaded |Year ended 315t

2} Debd Bervice Coversge Ratio : 3158 March, March,
Erofit {loss) belore exeeptions] items and (ax (LA3da]) {2 166.Th)
Adide Dieprecintion and asortisation soensy 205,04 16585

Intercst o loag renm ens - -
Interes on leass linhllicies 244.02 e
Earmings avalahle for debt iervies 867,19 {15387

Repayments made during the yearperiod

Imerest paid an long tem loans - .

Interest juiid o Jease liakilites 2402 LR

Principal repaymen for losg 1 Jonss - -

Principal repayment for bese ilahilics 33527 154.70

Total interest smd principal repsyments Sl IT0.64

Diebi service covernge ralio (144} (K.6d)

S el e fom previoos Vear £1% —1

Fpanan Tor change mare than 25%: Toe Riio his improved doe to reduction in cost of service during e year which
imprved the operstional performance during the carment financinl year .

Yesr ended | Vear ended 31t

|d} Refurn on Equily : 1isd March, Wlarch,
Jud4 2623
Profikloss) for the period {LBLTT (RMEIR
Teasl egaily 1304k 184103
et an cguiny [ (LEEY
; = Ly

i o

X -
e -
s "F}\\.{.
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Aceumpiny ey sobes o e Finsncinl Sttemenis
fore Chvee periond coded a0 Mareh, 2024

Iserven Technilogy Privite Limited

|
o — |
Vour emdbedl | Year ended
je] lnvembnry IFsever vt @ Fist Mareh, | 1941 March.
= w2e | (]
by vl pimmls TR By
| Uhpenme nevciiloemes ol fiished goods SR LT
U lemimg bvenibariss o ksl gy A4% ) S M
hvernpe mvenbaraes of linished poods Sl k4 15505
I ety Jurmuoser nsi il &R 2l
e sttt from previvis seqr 1My k]

AT partiers in varmen Gnareial yeas is compared 10 previous fnancial vear

Riearson fiar change mare thin 258%: Decrease in Investon turmiver rafi = due o kesser number of gevice depastches to

i A rarant in daes)

_ Year euded | Vear ended
T Trade receis able lurmnver ratlo st March, | 3w March.
= IS b Px]
Boveie Thont gperilsms |58 75 AlAE 52
1"1-4.—-|||1:_' crims e receivihies 2,280, |4 R
Cliraiiig s imide receivnhbes 1, 12714 2 2Ek 14
Averge groes e receivaliles F.E00.74 2 hetkid
Trmde recevables trnaver eatin qk g
(g T preignm veur |85y, -y
| made seveavabloy colbeoi period 1371 Lk} 72
Fo charge from peviowe yar Al 3%y

COIMPEES N 10 PrevEous s 2ar,

Resson for change more than 25%: Ratio improved manly due 16 guick realizotion of debtors in the curren vear in

| Year ended Yewr eniled
[I) Tradle poyvalles tommm e rutin Mt Muorek. | 5is1 Warch.
iixa 1023
ol credin purchises 140440 L | e
ey irade puyahles SE.A | ral
Chieming imde pavables a7 b Mg 4|
Ywirmzs irade posabies Sl 4 LL L
. : |
[ eade pasabilos lrnaver Fatie 35y il |
Ul IO pEEy R 12y [

B o heaze e 1lan 25%0 Deeriéase in iendle payable tienower retio s die 10 mereass e spoises oo e

iz | s ntaso ) durine il inancial year MI23-13

LTIV ATY B ARSI R L TR N




Aecompanying nates to the Financia] Siaiements

Iserven Technology Private Limised

for the period ended 318 March, 224
Year eaded | Year ended Fisi
{k} Ned capitsl turnaver ratio : Hist March, March,
2134 23
Rvenue from vpermiions 15,051 15 A, 06H 52
Curent assds 18,263,853 TEIVLE
Current Hahilities G 36 £ 14504
Workieg cpital (432.51) I 6.0
Adpasted working capital I FRL 60
Wit capitnl termoer malio - d.80
¥ change from previous: year 1004 235%

Reason for change more than 33%: Cumrent Liabilitses has inereased in carrent limencial year, due b increase in
lisbilstkcs sowerds the chenned peroner and cthes ligbilities such as lease Fahilitics aed shor torm harrewing i current

Year ended |Year ended 30st.
(i} Net profit ratio : 31t March, March,
1L -
Prodi ! {Loss) for the yesr (1,437.26) {2, 14, 7
Heveros from opalians 15,053 23 2,068,352
{tut ProGi rtie <D EEN -26 Ri%
% change [rom previous year ] -T475%
Fzasom For changs mar: (kan 25%: Revenue from operations incressed by 85% in inmeial Year 2024 as compared
fimaneal vear 023, whils the cost has incresed by 52%
Year endied |Year ended Jst
(i) Revarn on Capitsl Employed : Jist Marzh, March.
024 2013
Profil (3nss) ater m@x (1.331. 73} (X135 18]
Add: Tix eapiasealleredit] {10 545 4542
Finance cosis EL RS 1B5.54
Earmangs befiore mlenest and 16y {1,006 72 (1.2R1.21)
Equay 120140 34313
Long tem debi 2461 -
Capial emplooyed 1,364 L340
Pro-tas peturm on capiial sanploved 465,80 ¥ =54,52%
% change fross previons year -1 i
I
W OL 0~
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